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WASTEINVESTMENTS LLP

REPORT OF THE MEMBERS (CONTINUED)

MEMBERS REPORT

The Management Board present the report and audited financial statements for Wastelnvestments LLP on behalf of the
Members for the 52 week period ended 1 April 2011

The financial statements consolidate the accounts of Wastelnvestments LLP and all its subsidiary undertakings (the Group)

LEGAL STRUCTURE

The legal structure of the LLP 15 as stated in the Wastelnvestments Limited Liability Partnershup Agreement (dated 17 Apnl
2008)

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Wastelnvestments LLP 1s the holding company for a group of compames (the “Biffa Group™) whose principal activities are
the provision of integrated waste management services comprising waste collection, treatment and recycling and disposal
services to Jocal & national customers n the industrial, commercial & municipal sectors with the majority of its trading being
in the United Kingdom

FINANCING

Wastelnvestments LLP 1s financed through members' capital and the ongomng results arising out of its principal activities
p gomng g princip

GOING CONCERN STATEMENT

The Group’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position are
set out 1n the Business Review 1n the accounts of Biffa Group Limited on pages 2 to 4 The financial position of the Group,
its cash flows, hquidity position and borrowing facilities are described in the Fanancial Review in the accounts of Biffa Group
Limited on pages 4 to 5 in addition, note 16 to the financial statements includes the Group’s objectives, policies and
processes for managing its capital, its financial nsk management objectives, details of its financial instuments and hedging
activities, and s exposures to credit nisk and hquidity nsk

The following factors have been considered as part of the Group’s going concern review

e Liqudity - the Group has considerable financial resources wn the form of long term committed borrowing facilities
(detailed in note 16 to the financial statements)

¢ Covenants - the Group 1s required to comply with certain covenants under both the Sentor Finance and Mezzanine
debt facilities With reference to this, the Group’s forecasts and projections have been reviewed

s  Contracts - the Group has a large number of contracts with its customers and suppliers across different industries
This includes long-term municipal and integrated waste management contracts (detailed 1n note 28 to the financial
statements)

After reviewing the above and taking into account current and future developments as discussed in the Business Review in
the accounts of Biffa Group Limited, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company, and the Group, are well
placed to manage its business risks successfully, despite the current uncertain economirc outlook, and have adequate resources
to continue m operational existence for the foresecable future Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the annual report and accounts




WASTEINVESTMENTS LLP

REPORT OF THE MEMBERS (CONTINUED)

MEMBERS’ CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Members’ drawwngs and the subscription and repayment of capital are subject to the provisions of the Investment Agreement
and the Limited Liabihity Partnership Agreement between the members

Allocation of profits to the members and cash available for distribution 1s made n accordance with the terms of the Limited
Liabihty Partnership Agreement Cash available for distribution to the members 15 determined by the Management Board
after determining what 1s reasonably necessary for use in the operation and management of the LLP and what 1s required in
order to meet 1ts various obligations It 15 the policy of the LLP not to permit drawings by members until the LLP has
discharged 1ts obligations under the external financing arrangements under which loans are made to the LLP Group by third
party lenders and the capital expenditure requirements of the wider group have been satisfied

Any calls in respect of reserved subscriptions shall be determined by the Lead Investors in accordance with the terms of the
Investment Agreement and the Management Board in accordance with the terms of the Limited Liability Partnership
Agreement

Unless otherwise agreed n accordance with the Investment Agreement, 1t 13 not anticipated that (other than repayment to
employees in accordance with the Good Leaver/Bad Leaver provisions of the EBT) repayment of capital to members wall
occur until the underlying investments of the LL.P have been realised




WASTEINVESTMENTS LLP

REPORT OF THE MEMBERS (CONTINUED)

MEMBERS’ RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

The members are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations

The Limited Liability Partnership Regulations 2001 made under the Limtted Liabthty Partnerships Act 2000 requres the
members to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the members have elected to prepare the
Group financial statements i accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union and to prepare the parent partnership financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) Under that law, the members
must alse not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period

In preparing the parent parinership financial staiements, the membets are required to

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
make judgments and estunates that are reasonable and prudent,

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed
and explamed 1n the financial statements, and
. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 15 inappropriate to presume that the partnership

will continue in business
In preparmg the Group financial statements, International Accounting Standard 1 requires that members

properly select and apply accounting policies,
present information, mcluding accounting policies, m a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information,

. provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements 1n IFRSs are insufficient to enable
asers to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s financial posttion
and financial performance, and

) make an assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern

The members are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006, as applicable to lunited hability partnerships They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irreguiarities

The members are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information mecluded on the
Group’s website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements
may differ from legislation n other junsdictions

These responsibilities are exercised by the Management Board on behalf of the members

For and on behalf of Management Board

//Lpa S

MnRx DunEdy
Designated Mgmber

2\ June 2011




WASTEINVESTMENTS LLP
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF WASTEINVESTMENTS LLP
For the 52 wecks ended 1 April 2011

We have audited the financial statements of Wastelnvestments LLP for the 52 week peniod ended 1 April 2011 which
comprise the Group Income Statement, the Partnership Profit and Loss Account, the Group and Partnership Statement of
Financial Position, the Group and Partnership Statement of Cash Flows, the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income, the
Group Statement of Changes in Equity and the related notes 1 to 29 and Pl to P7 The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in their preparation 1s applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (1FFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent partnership
financial statements 15 applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice)

This report 15 made solely to the hmited hability partnership’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006 as apphed to limited hability partnerships by the Limited Liabilhity Partnerships (Accounts and
Audit) (Application of Companies Act 2006) Regulations 2008 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state
to the inuted liability partnership’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
limited liability partnership and the limited liability partnership’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of members and auditors

As explained more fully in the Members’ Responstbilities Statement, the members are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and far view. Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an
opinion on the financial statements 1n accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit mmvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error
This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s and the parent partnership’s
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the designated members, and the overall presentation of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements

« give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and the parent partnership’s affairs as at 1 April 2011 and of the
Group’s and the parent partnership’s loss for the period then ended,
of the Group have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,
of the parent partnership have been properly prepared in accordance with Umited Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, ang

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, as applicable to hmited
hability partnerships

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Compames Act 2006 requires us to report to you 1f;
In our opinion

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent partnership, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been recerved from branches not visited by us, or
the parent partnership financial statements are not 1n agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

S%L Cr g%

Stephen Griggs (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London, United Kingdom

21 Juae 2ot




WASTEINVESTMENTS LLP
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the 52 weeks ended 1 April 2011

52 weeks ended 1 April 2011

Notes Ordinary Ordinary 53 weeks ended
activities brefore activities after 2 Apnl
exceptional  Exceptional exceptional 2010
items 1tems ttems £m
£fm  £m (note 3) £m (restated —note
1)
Revenue 2 7751 - 775.1 7019
Cost of sales (716 8) - (716.8) (626 3)
Gross profit 58.3 - 58.3 756
Distribution costs (22.6) - (22.6) (153)
Adminstrative expenses 3 (27.8) (29.0) {56.8) (317)
Operatmg profit 2 7.9 (29.0) (21.1) 286
Share of post tax results of joint ventures 12 - - - 11
Fmance mcome 4 5.4 - 5.4 22
Finance charges 4 (118.3) - (118.3) (101 8)
Loss before taxation and members’ 6 (105.0) (29.0) (134 0) (69 9)
remuneration
Taxation 8 18.0 5.0 230 389
Loss for the period before members’ 87.0) (24.0) (111.0) (310)
remuneration
Members’ remunteration charged as an 20 (145.9) - (145.9) (82 8)
expense
Loss for the period attributable to the (232.9) (24 0) (256.9) (113 8)

members of Wastelnvestments LLP
All the amounts above relate to contthuing operations and are attributable to the members of Wasteinvestments LLP

Admunstrative expenses in the penod ended 2 April 2010 included £7 5Sm of exceptional items (related tax credit of £2 Om)




WASTEINVESTMENTS LLP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the 52 weeks ended 1 April 2011

Loss for the period
Other comprehensive income
Actuanal gans on defined benefit pension scheme
Net gain on cash flow hedge
Adjustment from change m accounting policy (IFRIC 12 - note 1)
Deferred tax charge ansing on
Net gain on cash flow hedge
Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension scheme

Other comprehensive (ncome for the period, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the period

52 weeks ended

53 weeks ended

1 Apnil 2 Apnl
2011 2010
£m fm
(restated — note 1)
_(256.9) (1138)
0.4 155
338 114
0.7) (13)
(9.6) (32)
0.2) 43
23.7 179
(233.2) (959)




WASTEINVESTMENTS LLP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
At 1 April 2011

Notes Asat1 Aprl Asat2 April  As at 27 March
2011 2010 2009
£m £m (restated - £m (restated —
note 1) note 1)
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill 9 990.4 9382 937.2
Other intangible assets 10 178.9 1637 179.5
Property, plant and equipment i 644.1 6120 617.1
Interest tn joint ventures 12 - - 0.6
Retirement benefit obligations 24 19.0 111 -
1,832.4 1,725 0 1,734 4
Current assets
Inventories 13 4.2 24 2.5
Trade and other recervables i4 155.7 1193 145.5
Current tax assets - - 4.5
Fancial assets 16 276 253 28.0
Cash and cash equivalents 15 99.1 113 8 106 O
286.6 260 8 286 5
Current habihities
Fmancial hatilities — borrowings 16 (24.3) (23 4) (15.7)
Denvative financial liabthties 16 (4.2) (37 5) {49.5)
Trade and other payables 17 (210.1) (194 R) (165.8)
Current tax liabihties 0.7)
Provisions 18 (18 5) (164) (17.6)
Total current hiabihties (257.8) 272 1) (248.6)
Net current assets /{hablities) 28.8 (113) 37.9
Non-current habilities
Financial habilities — borrowings 16 (1,035.3) (964 7) (979.1)
Non-current provisions 18 (56.4) (50 3) (45 2)
Deferred tax liabilities 19 (71.5) (79 5) (106.9)
Retirement benefit obligations 24 - - (8.8)
Total ron-current liabilities (1,163.2) (1,094 5) (1,140.0)
Net assets attributable to members 698.0 6192 632.3
REPRESENTED BY:
Members interests classified as non-current habilities
under 1AS 32
Class B partnership interest (849 0) (749 8) 681.1)
Class C partnership interest (132.3) (107 8) (93.7)
Class D partnership interest (188.5) - -
Total membership interests represented as debt 16,20 (1,169.8) (857 6) (774 8)
Net habihities (471.8) (238 4) (142 5)
Class A Partnershup Equity 10.4 104 10.4
Hedging Reserve (3.8) (28 0) (36.2)
Retained Loss (478.4) (220 8) (116.7)
Total members’ deficit 20 (471.8) (238 4) (142 5)

The financial statements of Wastelnvestments LLP, registered number OC334618, on pages 7 to 53 were approved by the
board and signed on 1ts behalf

o TN

MARK DU""CU’, Designafed member
2y June20l (\




WASTEINVESTMENTS LLP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
At 1 April 2011

Class A Hedgng Retamed Total
Partnership Reserves Eamngs Equity
Equity
£m £fm £m fm
At 27 March 2009 104 (362) (121.0) (146 8)
Adjustment from change 1n accounting policy - - 43 43
(IFRIC 12 - note 1)
At 27 March 2009 (restated — note 1) 104 (362) (116.7) (142.5)
Loss for the period . - (113 8) (113 8)
Other comprehensive income for the period - 82 112 194
Adjustment from change in accounting pohcy - - (15 (1%
(IFRIC 12 —note 1)
Total comprehensive ncome for the period - 82 (104 1) (959)
At 2 April 2010 (restated — note 1) 10.4 (28.0) (220.8) (2334)
Acquisition of non controlling interest - - (02) (02)
Loss for the period - - (256 9 (256 9)
Other comprehensive income for the period - 242 (05) 237
Total comprehensive income for the period - 242 (257 4) (2332
At 1 April 2011 10.4 (38) (478.4)  (471.8)

10




‘WASTEINVESTMENTS LLP
"CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the 52 weeks ended 1 April 2011

Notes 52 weeks ended

53 weeks ended

1 April 2 Apnil
2011 2010
£m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 21 878 188 7
Restructuring, exceptional and acquisition costs 9.7 87
Additional pension contributions - -
Interest received 1.0 21
Interest paid (74.4) (76 8)
Tax received 4.4 108
Net cash from operating activities 9.1 116 1
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiary (net of cash acquired) 91.0) 02
Repayment of external loans acquired (16.1) -
Payment of professional fees incurred on acquisition of subsichary (18.7) -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (74.0) (82 6)
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 50 13
Dividend received - 10
Net cash used in investing activities (194.8) (80 1)
Cash flows from financing activities
Capital contributions by members 166.2 -
Finance lease principal payments (6.1) (09)
Drawdown of borrowings S00 -
Repayment of borrowings (39 1) 27 3)
Net cash flow from financing activities 171.0 (28 2)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (14.7) 78
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 113.8 106 O
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 99.1 113 8
Operating cash flow
Cash generated from operations 87.8 188 7
Dividend received from JV arrangements - 10
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 5.0 13
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (74.0) (82 6)
Restructuring and exceptional cost payments .7 B7
Tax refunds (relating to post acquisition period) 4.4 108
Operating cash flow (note 1) 13.5 110 5
(1) Operating cash flow 1s defined as the cash generated from operations plus the proceeds from the sale of property,

plant and equipment, dividend income from jont venture arrangements and tax refunds less any capital expenditure,

restructuring and exceptional costs and tax payments

11




WASTEINVESTMENTS LLP
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared 1n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) The
financial statements have also been prepared n accordance with [FRSs adopted by the European Union (EU) and therefore
the Group financial statements comply with Article 4 of the ELJ TAS regulation The financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost conventron as medified by the revaluation of financial assets and lrabilities at fair value through the
income statement, and on a going concern basis {as discussed below)

Wastelnvestments LLP 1s a Limited Liability Partmership incorporated in the Umited Kingdom under the Lunited Liability
Partmerships Act 2000 The address of the registered office 15 Coronation Road, High Wycombe, Buckinghamshire, HP12
3TZ The nature of the Group's operations and its principal activities are set out i note 1 and 1n the Report of the Members
onpages2to5

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies, set out below The preparation of
financial statements 1n conformity with generally accepted accounting policies requares the use of certain critical accounting
estimates It also requires management to exercise 1ts judgement n the process of applymng the Group’s accounting policies

Although these judgements and estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual
results may ultimately differ from these Further detail on accounting estimates, assumptions and uncertainties can be found
on page 20

During 2010/11, the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) and International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) 1ssued additional accounting standards and interpretations which are effective for periods starting after
the date of this financial information Full detail of these, along with new and revised standards which were adopted by the
Group 1n the period, can be found in note 1

b) Going concern
The following factors have been considered as part of the Group’s going concern review

s Liquudity - the Group has considerable financial resources in the form of long term committed borrowing facilities
(detailed in note 16 to the financial statements)

s Covenants - the Group 15 required to comply with certain covenants under both the Senior Finance and Mezzanine
debt facilmes With reference to this, the Group’s forecasts and projections have been reviewed

e Contracts - the Group has a large number of contracts with its customers and suppliers across different industries
This mcludes long-term municipal and integrated waste management contracts (detailed 1n note 28 to the financial
statements)

After reviewing the above and taking mnto account current and future developments as discussed in the Business Review 1n
the accounts of Biffa Group Limited, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company, and the Group, are well
placed to manage 1its business risks successfully, despite the current uncertain economic outlook, and have adequate resources
to continue n operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis 1n
preparing the annual report and accounts

¢) Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisiion method The consideration for each
acquisition 1s measured at the aggregate of the far values (at the date of exchange) of assets given, habilities incurred or
assumed, and equity nstruments 1ssued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree Acquisition-related costs are
recognised tn profit or loss as mcurred

Where apphcable, the consideration for the acquisition includes any asset or hability resulting from a contingent
constderation arrangement, measured at its acquisition-date fair value Subsequent changes m such fair values are adjusted
against the cost of acquisition where they qualify as measurement period adjustments (see below) All other subsequent
changes m the fair value of contingent consideration classified as an asset or hability are accounted for 1n accordance with
relevant IFRSs Changes 1n the fair value of contingent consideration classified as equity are not recognised

Where a busmess combination 1s achieved in stages, the Group’s previously-held mterests in the acquired entity are
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (1 ¢ the date the Group attams control) and the resulting gam or loss, if any, 15
recogmised 1n profit or koss Amounts ansing from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously
been recognised m other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss, where such treatment would be appropriate
if that interest were disposed of

12




WASTEINVESTMENTS LLP
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

¢) Business combinations (continued)
The acquiree’s identifiable assets, habilittes and contingent habihities that meet the condittons for recogmtion under IFRS
3(2008) are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date, except that

s  deferred tax assets or habilities and habilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured 1n accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and 1AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively,

e liabilities or equity instruments related to the replacement by the Group of an acquiree’s share-based payment
awards are measured 1n accordance with [FRS 2 Share-based Payment, and

e  assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that Standard

If the tmtial accounting for a business combination 15 incomplete by the end of the reporting pertod in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting 1s incomplete Those provisional
amounts are adjusted during the measurement period (see below), or additional assets or hiabilities are recognised, to reflect
new nformation obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, 1f known, would have
affected the amounts recognised as of that date

The measurement period 1s the period from the date of acquisition to the date the Group obtains complete information about
facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date, and 1s subject to @ maximum of one year

d) Basis of consolhidation

The consolidated financial statements mnclude the financial statements of Wastelnvestments LLP and the entties controlled
by 1t (its subsidiaries) made up to t April 2011  Control 15 achieved when Wastelnvestments LLP has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an invested entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included n the consclidated income statement from the
effective date of acquisttion or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate Where necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used nto line with those used by the group All intra-
group transactions, balances, income and expenses are elimmated on consolidation

The results of jomnt venture undertakings are accounted for in the consclhidated financial statements on an equity basis where
the Group has exercised joint control under a contractual arrangement

¢) Revenue
Revenue represents the income recervable excluding value added tax, trade discounts and intercompany sales, in the ordinary
course of busimness for goods and services provided Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of consideration received

Revenue is recognised at the pomnt when service has been performed Within the 1&C division this will be on completion of
each contamer lift, or in accordance with the contract bl of quantities with respect to Municipal contracts  For Processing &
Recyclng and Landfill & Treatment, revenue will be recogmsed on receipt of waste, whilst for the Energy from Waste
division 1t 15 recogmised on the measured supply of power

Revenue 1s not recognised until the services have been provided to the customer Interest income 1s accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable

) Operating profit
Operating profit 15 stated after charging operating expenses against revenue recognised n the period but before the share of
results of jomnt ventures, finance charges and finance income

g) Operating exceptional items

Items that are erther material in size or non-operating in nature are presented as operating exceptional 1tems in the mmcome
statement within operating profit The members are of the opinion that the separate recording of operating exceptional items
provides helpful information about the Group’s underlying business performance Example of events which may give rise to
the classification of items as exceptional include restructuring of businesses, gans or losses on disposal of properties,
impairment of goodwill and material non-recurring mncome or expenditure

13




WASTEINVESTMENTS LLP
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

h) Segmental reporting

IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be 1dentified on the basis of internal reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the Chief Executive to allocate resources to the segments and to assess their performance

As discussed (n the Directors’ Report, the operating divisions have been reorganised n the year, following the acquisiton of
the Greenstar group The new structure follows the five strategic pillars of the business, and moved the business towards a
more divisional organisational structure

The Group’s reportabie segments under IFRS 8 are therefore as follows
e 1&C Collection - provides waste collection services to mdustnial and commercial waste producers
*  Municipal — provides waste collection services to municipal council customers
* Processing & Recycling — provides recycling services including plastic, metal, paper, card and wood
¢ Landfill & Treatment — provides waste treatment and disposal services for all customers

e Energy from Waste - utilises the landfill gas from the Company’s landfill sites, food waste in the Company’s
anaerobic digestion capacity, as well as manufacturing refuse denved fuels to generate ‘green’ power for sale 1n
the energy market

Information reported to the Group's Chief Executive, for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance, 1s more specifically focussed on ane particular measure (' EBITDAP*) which s not directly reported mn the
statutory accounts As such, analysis of profitability in note 2 1s focussed on EBITDAP

For management purposes, the Group 1s organised into the above five business segments based on the services provided
Management monitors the operating results of the business segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources to be allocated and assessing performance

Smnce all trading activity and operations are m the United Kingdom, there 1s no secondary reporting format by geographical
segment

1) Property, plant, equipment and depreciation

Landfill sites

Landfill sites are included within property, plant and equipment at cost less accumulated depreciation The cost of landfill
sites includes the cost of acquiring, developing and engineering sites, but does not include mterest The anticipated total cost
of the asset 15 depreciated over the estimated hife of the site on the basis of the usage of void space In some circumstances
the ming of engineering expenditure and the configuration of a site can lead to depreciation charges exceeding capital
expendifure to date In these circumstances the surplus depreciation 1s transferred to provisions

Other property, plant and equipment
Other property, plant and equipment are mmcluded at cost less accumulated depreciation  Freehold land 15 not depreciated
Other property, plant and equipment 1s depreciated on a straight-line basis over thew expected lives, which are as follows

Short leasehold property and improvements Length of lease up to 21 years

Long leasehold property and improvements Length of lease greater than 21 years
Motor vehicles 4-8 years

Plant 5-10 years

Fixtures and office equipment 5-10 years

Assets m the course of construction are not depreciated until commussioned -

14




WASTEINVESTMENTS LLP
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1) Leased assets

Where assets are financed by leasing arrangements which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an
asset to the lessee (finance leases), the assets are accounted for as if they had been purchased and the fair value of the
minimum payments are shown as an obligation to the lessor Lease payments are treated as consisting of a capital and a
finance charge The capital element reduces the obhgation to the lessor with the finance charge being expensed to the income
statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of mterest on the remaining balance of the hability
for each period Depreciation 1s charged over the shorter of the estimated useful Iife and the lease period

All other leases are accounted for as operating leases Rental costs arising under operating leases are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter 1nto operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a hability The
aggregate benefit of incentives 15 recogmised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis ts more representative of the time pattern i which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed

k) Government grants
Grant and contributions received in respect of non-current assets are treated as deferred mncome and released to the income
statement over the useful economic hves of those assets

I) Goodwill and intangibles

Goodwill represents the excess of the farr value of the purchase consideration over the fair value of the idennifiable intangible
and tangible assets net of farr value of the habilities, including contingencies, of the business acquired at the date of
acquisition  Goodwill 1s stated at this cost less any impairments expensed to the income statement

Goodwill 1s not amortised but 1s reviewed for impawrment at least annually For the purpose of impawrment testing, goodwill
1s allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units expecied to benefit from the synergies of the combination Cash-
generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for umpairment annually, or more frequently when there 1s an
indication that the umt may be imparred If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit 1s less than the carrymng
amount of the umt, the impawrment loss 15 allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwall allocated to the umt
and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit An 1mpairment
loss recognised for goodwill 15 not reversed in a subsequent period

Intangible assets are separately 1dentified from goodw1ll on an acquisition, and a fair value attributed to that asset Customer
lists or contracts that will generate future economic benefits represent such intangible assets that may be acquired Customer
lists or contracts that are held n intangible assets are subject to amortisation over a period of 5 years Intangible assets are
stated at cost less amortisation expensed to the income statement

Costs that are directly associated with the production and purchase of identifiable and unique software products controlled by
the Group, and that will generate economic benefits beyond one year are recognised as mtangible assets These intangible
assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairinent losses Software 1s amortised over 2-5 years

m) impairment of non-current assets excluding goodwiit

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts ot 1ts tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there s any mdication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss If any such wndication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset 1s estimated to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any) Where the asset does not generate
cash flows that are mdependent from other assets, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating umt to
which the asset belongs An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life 1s tested for impairment at least annually and
whenever there 15 an indication that the asset may be imparred

Recoverable amount 15 the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value m use In assessing value mn use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the tume value of money and the nisks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating umt) 15 estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating umit) 1s reduced to its recoverable amount An mpairment loss 1s recogmsed
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset 15 carmed at a revalued amount, 1n which case the impawment loss 1s
treated as a revaluation decrease
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WASTEINVESTMENTS LLP
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

m) Impairment of non-current assets excluding goodwill (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) 15 increased to the
revised estimate of 1ts recoverable amount, but so that the mcreased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determmned had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset {(or cash-generating unit) 1n prior
years A reversal of an impairment loss 1s recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset 15 carried at a
revalued amount, 1n which case the reversal of the impairment loss 1s treated as a revaluation increase

Impairments are recognised in the income statement, and where matenal 15 disclosed as an operating exceptional tem within
operating profit

n) Investments
Investments held as fixed assets are held at cost less provision for imparment I{nvestmenis in jointly controlled entities are
incorporated in these financial statements using the equity method of accounting

o) Inventores

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost 1s based on the first-in first-out method and wncludes
expenditure incurred mn acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their exisung location and condition  Net realisable
value 15 based on estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less further costs expected to be ncurred to
completion and disposal Provision 1s made for obsolete, slow-moving or defective items where appropnate

p) Provisions

Provistons are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and 1t 1s probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation Provisions are measured at the members’ best estimate of the expenditure
required to seitle the obligation at the balance sheet date, and are discounted to present value where the effect 1s matenal
The following paragraphs within this section set out more specific applications of provisionmng

Landfill reinstatement costs
Provision for the cost of remnstating landfill sites 1s made as the obligation to rewnstate the site anises  Costs are charged to the
incoime statement over the operational hife on the basis of the usage of void space for each landfill site

Environmental control and aftercare costs

Provision for environmental costs and afiercare costs are made as the environmental and afiercare habihty anses  Costs are
charged to the mcome statement over the operational hife of each landfill site on the basis of the usage of void space
Aftercare costs may continue for a considerable period thereafter Long term aftercare provistons are calculated based on the
net present value of estimated future costs by applying an appropnate discount rate  The effects of inflation and unwinding
of the discount element on existing provisions are reflected m the financial information as a finance charge

Insurance
Provision 1s made for claims notified and for claims incurred but which have not yet been notified, based on advice from the
Group’s external and internal msurance advisers

q) Pension costs
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due

For defined benefit schemes, the cost of providing benefits 1s determined using the Projected Umt Credit Method, with
actuarial valuations being camied out at each balance sheet date Actuanal gains and losses are recogmised m full n the perod
in which they occur They are recogmised outside profit or loss and presented 1n other comprehensive income

Past service cost 15 recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested, and otherwise 15 amortised on a
straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits become vested

The retirement benefit obligation recogmised n the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation
as adjusted for unrecogmised past service cost, and as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets Any asset resulting from
this calculation 1s hmited to past service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and reductions n future
contributions to the scheme
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WASTEINVESTMENTS LLP
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

r) Tax

Current tax

Current tax payable or recoverable 1s based on taxable profits or allowable losses for the year Taxable profits or atlowable
losses differ from the profit or loss as reported in the income statement because they exclude items of income and expenses
that are taxable or allowable in other years and further exclude wems that are never taxable or deductible The group’s current
tax payable or recoverable 15 calculated using rates which have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 15 the tax that 1s expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and labilities n the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used i the computation of taxable profit, and 15
accounted for using the balance sheet hability method Provision is made n full for deferred tax habihties that anse from
tuming differences where transactions or events that result in an obhgation to pay more tax n the future have occurred by the
balance sheet date Deferred tax assets are recogmised to the extent that it 1s probable that they will be recoverable 1n the
future Deferred tax 15 measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply n the periods in which the timing differences are
expected to reverse based on the rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s charged or credited in the income statement, except when 1t relates to items charged or credited directly to
equity, in which case the deferred tax 1s also deait with in equity Deferred tax habiliies are recognised for taxable
temporary differences ansing in respect of interests in jownt ventures, except where the Group 1s able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and 1t 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse 1n the foreseeable future

s) Pre-contract costs
Pre-contract costs are expensed as incurred, except where 1t 15 virtuatly certamn that the contract will be awarded, in which
case they are recogmised as an asset which 1s written off to the income statement over the life of the contract

t) Financial mstruments
Financial assets and financial habilities are recognised 1n the Group’s balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity

The Group derecognises a financial habihity only when the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire

Financial assets

All financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date where the purchase or sale of a financial asset 1s under a
contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the timeframe estabhshed by the market concerned, and
are imtially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through
profit or loss, which are imitially measured at fair value

Financial assets are classified wnto the following specified categones financial assets ‘at fair value through profit or loss’
(FVTPL) and ‘loans and receivables’ The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and 1s
determmned at the time of nitial recognition

Effective interest method

The effective nterest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period The effective nterest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including alt fees and pownts paid or recerved that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on imitial recognition

Income 1s recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL
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WASTEINVESTMENTS LLP
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

t) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets at FYTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL. when the financial asset 15 erther held for trading or 1t 1s designated as at FVTPL

A financial asset 15 classified as held for trading 1f
e 1t has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near term, or
* on initial recognrtion 1t 1s a part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking, or
e 1tis a derivative that 1s not designated and effective as a hedging instrument

A financral asset other than a financial asset held for frading may be designated as at FVTPL upon mmitial recognition 1f

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recogmition nconsistency that would
otherwise arise, or

¢ the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial habilities or both, which 1s managed and its
performance 15 evaluated on a fawr value basis, m accordance with the Group's documented risk management or
mvestment strategy, and mformation about the grouping 1s provided nternally on that basis, or

e 1t forms part of a contract contamning one or more embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 Financial Instruments
Recogmition and Measurement permits the entire combmed contract {asset or hability) to be designated as at
FVTPL

Financtal assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gamns or losses arising on remeasurement recognsed in profit or
loss

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans, and other recervables that have fixed or determmable payments that are not quoted m an active
market are classified as ‘loans and receivables’ Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any iumpairment [nterest income 1s recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-
term recetvables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date Financial
assets are impatred where there 1s objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the 1mitial
recognitton of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been affected

For certamn categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impared individually are,
in addition, assessed for umpairrment on a collective basis Objective evidence of impawrment could nclude significant
financial difficulty of the customer, default on payment terms or the customer gomng mto hquidation

The carrymg amount of trade and other receivables 15 reduced through the use of an allowance account When a trede ot other
recervable 15 considered uncollectible, 1t 15 written off against the allowance account Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the allowance account Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recogntsed m the income statement

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents mclude cash at bank and n hand, deposits at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with origmal maturity at acquisition of three months or less that are readily convertible to cash, net of bank
overdrafts For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consists of the definition outlmed above

Financial habihties and equity
Financial liabilities and equity are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
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WASTEINVESTMENTS LLP
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

t) Financial instruments (continued)

Equity mstrements
Equity instruments consist of the Company’s ordinary share capital and are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
155ue costs

Financial habilities

All non-derivative financial habilities are classified as other financial habilities and are imitially measured at fair value, net of
transaction costs Other financial habilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective mterest rate
method

Other financial habilities consist of borrowings and trade and other payables

Fmancial habilities are classified as current habihities unless the Group has an unconditional right 1o defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date

Denvative financial instruments
The Group has entered into interest rate swaps and basis rate swaps to manage its exposure to interest rate risk

Derivatives are nitially recogmsed at far value at the date a derivative contract 1s entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their far value at each balance sheet date The resulting gaimn or loss 1s recogmsed n the income statement
immediately unless the denivative 1s designated and effective as a hedging instrument

A derivative 15 presented as a non-current asset or hability 1f the remaiming maturity of the mstrument 1s more than 12 menths
and it 18 not expected 1o be reahsed or setiled within 12 months Other denvatives are presented as current assets or habihinies

Cash flow hedge accounting
In the period, the Group designated interest rate swaps as cash flow hedges agamnst variable interest rate payments on the
Group’s borrowings

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group designates the relationship between the hedging mstrument and the
hedged item, along with 1ts nsk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking hedge transactions Furthermore, at
the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument that 1s used 1s
highly effective i offsetting changes n cash flows of the hedged item

The effectrve portion of changes n the farr value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are
deferred in equity The gam or loss relating to the meffective portion 1s recogmised immediately 1n finance income or finance
COSts

Amounts deferred in equity are recycled into the income statement i the periods when the hedged item 1s recogrused n the
income statement, 1n the same line of the income statement as the recogrused hedged item

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relanonship, the hedging mstrument expires or 1s
sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting Any cumulative gain or loss deferred i equity at
that time remains 1n equity and 1s recognised when the forecast transaction 1s ultimately recognised in the income statement
When a forecast transaction 1s no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was deferred in equity 1s
recognised immediately in the income statement




WASTEINVESTMENTS LLP
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

u) Accounting estimates, assumptions and uncertainties

The preparation of the financial statements 1n conformity with IFRS requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabihities, income, expenses and related disclosures
The estumates and underlying assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances ‘This forms the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources Actual results may however differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Changes in accounting estimates may be
necessary 1f there are changes in the circumstances on which the estimate was based, or as a result of new information or
further information  Such changes are recognised 1n the period 1 which the estimate 15 revised

Certan accounting policies are particularly important to the preparation and explanation of the Group’s financial information
Key assumptions about the future and key sources of estimation uncertainty that have a risk of causing a matertal adjustment
to the carrying value of assets and hiabilities over the next twelve months are set out below

Impairment of Goodwill, Intangible Assets and Fixed Assets

The Group has property, plant and equipment with a carrying value £644 1 mullion, intangible assets with a carrying value of
£178 9m and goodwill with a carrying value of £990 4 mullion as at 1 Apnl 2011These assets are reviewed annually for
impairment as described above to ensure that goodwill and fixed assets are not carried above their estimated recoverable
amounts To assess 1f any impairment exists, estimates are made of the future cash flows expected to result from the use of
the asset and uts eventual disposal  Actual outcomes could vary from such estimates of discounted future cash flows Factors
such as changes tn expected use of buildings, plant and machinery, closure of facilities, or lower than anticipated sales could
result in shortened useful lives or impairment

Further detail of the impairment review carried out in respect of the Group’s goodwill 1s included at note 9

Site Development and Cell Preparation

Total anticipated site development and celt preparation costs are charged to the wncome statement as vord usage progresses
Landfill engineering costs are esttmated using either the work of external consultants or internal experts Management uses
its judgement and experience to provide for these estimated costs over the life of the site

Environmental Control and Aftercare Costs

Provision 1s made for environmental control costs as soon as the obligation arises, and 13 charged to the income statement as
void usage progresses Environmental costs are estumated using either the work of external consultants or mternal experts
Management uses 1ts judgement and experience to provide for these estimated costs over the life of the site

Pensions costs

At | April 2011, Group’s defined benefit scheme had assets with a fair value of £272 5 nmlhon and obligations with a present
value of £253 5 mullion The calculations of the assets and hiabilities from such plans are based upon statistical and actuarial
calculations The present value of the defined benefit obligation 1s impacted by assumptions on discount rates used to armve
at the present value of future pension habilities, and assumptions on future increases n salaries and benefits The Group’s
independent actuartes used statistically based assumptions covering areas such as future withdrawals of participants from the
scheme and estimates on life expectancy The actuanal assumptions used may differ matenally from actual results due to
changes in economic and market condittons, higher or lower withdrawal rates, longer or shorter life spans of participants and
other changes m the assumptions employed by the actuaries These differences could impact the assets or liabiities
recognised n the balance sheet in future periods

Income taxes

At 1 April 2011, a habiiity for current tax of £0 7 million was recorded with a net hability of £71 5 mullion for deferred
income taxes Estinates may be required in determiming the level of current and deferred income tax assets and habilities,
which the members believe are reasonable and adequately recognise any income tax related uncertainties Various factors
may have favourable or adverse effects on the income tax assets or hiabihties These mclude changes in tax legislation, tax
rates and allowances, future levels of spending and the Group’s level of future earnings

v) Allocation of profits and drawings

Profits are allocated n proportion to the class of partnership equity interests held and in accordance with the terms of the
Wastelnvestments LLP Partnership Agreement Distnbutions out of cash are made at the Management Board's discretion
after due regard to the amounts determined by the Management Board to be reasonably necessary to meet the working capital
needs of the LLP
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WASTEINVESTMENTS LLP
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the 52 weeks ended 1 April 2011

1 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

In the current year, the following new and revised Standards and Interpretations have been adopted and have affected the
amounts reported in these financial statements

Standards affecting the financial statements

IFRIC 12 Service This Interpretation sets out general principles on recogmsing and measuring the
Concesston Arrangements obhgations and related nghts i service concession arrangements The
Interpretation applies 1f

¢ the grantor controls or regulates what services the operator must provide
with the infrastructure, to whom 1t must provide them, and at what price,
and

e the grantor controls — through ownership, beneficial entitlement or
otherwise — any significant residual interest in the infrastructure at the end
of the term of the arrangement

The Group has three integrated waste management contracts which fall under this
mterpretation

» a contract with Leicester City Council, awarded in 2003 for a term of 25
years,

e a contract with Isle of Wight Council, awarded in 1997 for a term of 18
years, and

* a contract with West Sussex Council, awarded in 2010 for a term of 25
years

Infrastructure within the scope of this Interpretation shall not be recogmsed as
property, plant and equipment of the operator because the contractual service
arrangement does not convey the right to control the use of the public service
infrastructure to the operator The operator instead recognises a financial asset to
the extent that 1t has an unconditional contractual right to receive cash or another
financial asset from the grantor, or an intangible asset to the extent that it receives a
right/license to charge users of the public service This financial asset has been
accounted for ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ (FVTPL)

The Interpretation has been apphed retrospectively in accordance with the relevant
transitions The primary changes are the elimination of property, plant and
equipment with a net book value of £21 4 mullion and £22 Om 1n 2010 and 2009
respectively, while financial assets of £25 3m and £28 Om have been created in
2010 and 2009 respectively

The impact m 2010 was to reduce retaned earmings by £1 Sm The impact on
periods prior to those disclosed was to increase retamed earmings by £4 3m

IFRS 3 (2008} Business These standards have iniroduced a number of changes in the accounting for
Combinations, business combinations when acquiring a subsidiary or an associate 1FRS 3(2008)
IAS 27 (2008) Consolidated has also introduced additional disclosure requirements for acquisitions Refer to the

and Separate Fmancral Accounting Policies for more details

Statements, These standards have been applied in respect of the acquisition of Greenstar — refer

IAS 28 (2008) Investments | '© "0t€ 23
In Associates
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WASTEINVESTMENTS LLP
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the 52 weeks ended 1 April 2011

1 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Standards not affecting the reported results nor the financial position

IFRIC 17 Distributions of
Non-Cash Assets to Owners

The Interpretation provides gwidance on when an entity should recogmse a non-
cash dividend payable, how to measure the dividend payable and how to account
for any difference between the carrying amount of the assets distributed and the
carrying amount of the dividend payable when the payable 1s settled

IFRS 2 (amended) Group
Cash-Settled Share-Based
Payment Transactions

The amendment clarfies the accounting for share-based payment transactions
between group entities

Amendment to IFRS 2
Share-Based Payment

IFRS 2 has been amended, following the 1ssue of IFRS 3(2008), to confirm that the
contribution of a business on the formation of a joint venture and common control
transactions are not within the scope of IFRS 2

Amendment to [AS 17
Leases

IAS 17 has been amended such that 1t may be possible to classify a lease of land as
a finance lease 1f 1t meets the criteria for that classification under [AS 17

Amendment to 1AS 39
Financial Instruments
Recognition and
Measurement

IAS 39 has been amended to state that options contracts between an acquirer and a
selling shareholder to buy or sell an acquiree that will result 1n a business
combination at a future acquisitton date are not excluded from the scope of the
standard

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations which have not
been apphied n these financial statements were 1n 1ssue but not yet effective (and 1n some cases had not yet been adopted

by the ELJ)

IFRS 9

IAS 24 (amended)

IAS 32 (amended)

IFRIC 19

IFRIC 14 (amended)

IFRS 13

IFRS 12

IFRS 11

IFRS 10

1AS 28 (revised May 2011)
IAS 27 (revised May 2011}

Financial Instruments

Related Party Disclosures

Classification of Rights I[ssues

Extingmishing Financial Liabilities with Equity [nstruments
Prepayments of a Mimmum Funding Requirement
Fair Value Measurement

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Jomt Arrangements

Consolidated Financial Statements

Investments i Associates and Jomnt Ventures
Separate Financial Statements

Amendments to 1AS 12 (Dec 2010) Deferred Tax Recovery of Underlying Assets

Amendments to [FRS 1 {Dec 2010) Severe Hypennflation and Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time
Adopters

Amendments to IFRS 7 (Oct 2010) Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets

Improvements to IFRSs 2010 (May 2010) Improvements to IFRSs 2010

The adoption of IFRS 9 which the Group plans to adopt for the period begmning on 1 April 2013 will impact both the

measurement and disclosures of Financial Instruments

The directors do not expect that the adoption of the other standards listed above will have a matenial impact on the

financial statements of the Group in future periods
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WASTEINVESTMENTS LLP
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the 52 weeks ended 1 April 2011

2 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group 1s managed by type of business and 1s organised into five operating divisions These divisions represent the
business segments 11 which the Group reports 1ts primary segment information Since all trading acuivity and operations
are in the United Kingdom, there 1s no secondary reporting format by geographical segment

Prior year numbers have been restated due to a change in divisional structure reflecting changes in internal management
reporting following the Greenstar acquisition The segment results for the 52 weeks ending 1 Aprit 2011 are as follows

52 weeks ended 1 Apnl 2011 53 weeks ended 2 April 2010
External External External Total
£m £m £m £m
Revenue
1&C 365.7 419.2 367 1 4105
Municipal 99.6 100.3 525 531
Processing & Recycling 52.7 85§ 218 22
Landfill & Treatment 170.7 239.6 188 0 2597
Energy from Waste 86.4 89.7 725 742
Inter and mtra-segment revenue elimmnation
1&C - (535) - 434)
Municipal - (1 - (06)
Processing & Recycling - (2.8) - {04
Landfill & Treatment - (68.9) - (717
Energy from Waste - (3.3 - (L7
775.1 775.1 7019 7019
52 weeks ended 53 weeks ended
1Apnl 2 Apnl
2011 2010
£m fm
EBITDAP
1&C 394 588
Municipal 16.3 80
Processing & Recycling 8.2 32
Landfill & Treatment 56.0 621
Energy from Waste 40.1 371
Shared services and corporate costs (29.1) (i22)
EBITDAP before exceptional charges 130.9 1570
Depreciation and amortisation (116.7) (103 0)
Environmental provisions (11.0) (183)
Other 47 04
Operating profit before exceptional charges 7.9 361
Exceptional items (note 3) (29.0) (75)
Operatnng (loss)/profit after exceptional charges 21.1) 286
Finance charges (118 3) (101 8)
Finance mmcome 54 22
Share of post tax results of joint ventures - 11
Loss before taxation (134.0) (699)
EBITDAP before exceptional charges 130.9 1570
Share of post tax results of joint ventures - 11
EBITDAP as reported 130.9 158 1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the 52 weeks ended 1 April 2011

2 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies Segment EBITDAP

represents the profit earned by each segment without atlocation of the share of provisions, depreciation and amortisation,
exceptional items, finance costs and ncome tax expense This 15 the measure reported fo the Group’s Chief Executive for
the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance

The exceptional costs of £29 0 million as disclosed in note 3 relate to all segments

The share of post tax results of the Jomnt ventures relates entirely to the Energy from Waste diviston

Inter and intra-segment transactions between and within divisions are entered into under the normal commercial terms
and conditions that would also be available to unrelated third parties, with revenue analysed as follows

32 weeks ended 53 weeks ended

1 April 2 April
2011 2010
£m £m

Inter and intra-segment revenue
1&C 53.5 434
Municipal 0.7 06
Processing & Recycling 2.8 04
Landfill & Treatment 68.9 717
Energy from Waste 33 17
129.2 1178

Other segment 1tems are
52weeks ended 53 weeks ended

1 Apnil 2 Aprl
2011 2010
£m fm
Capital expenditure
1&C 17.9 221
Muntcipal 24 -
Processing & Recycling 5.3 101
Landfill & Treatment 11.6 341
Energy from Waste 359 116
Shared services and corporate 0.9 11
74.0 790
Depreciation and amortisation
1&C (48.0) @6 1)
Municipal (9.2) 438
Processing & Recycling 3.5) 0 6)
Landfill & Treatment (40.9) (376)
Energy from Waste (12.3) (11 2)
Shared services and corporate (2.8) 27
(116.7) (103 0)

Caprtal expenditure comprises additions to goodwill, infangible assets and propery, plant and equipment, and includes
additions arising through business acquisitions

Depreciation and amortisation relates to the write down of both intangible and tangible fixed assets over their estimated
useful economic hives

24




WASTEINVESTMENTS LLP
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the 52 weeks ended 1 April 2011

3 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

Excegtlonal charges incurred i the penod primarily relate to the acquisition of the Greenstar group which completed on

the 6

Admimstration expenses
Professional fees (note 1)
Restructuring costs (note 1)

August 2010 and relate to all the reportable segments

52 weeks ended 33 weeks ended
1 Aprl 2 Apnil

2011 2010

£m fm

18.7 02

10.3 73

29.0 75

(1) Professional fees were incurred principally n relation to the acquisition of the Greenstar group by Biffa Group Limited n the

period

(1) Restructuring costs in the current year largely related to redundancy payments which were incurred following the acquisition of
the Greenstar group by Biffa Group Limited Prior year restructuning costs related to the acquisition of the Biffa group by Biffa

Group Limited

(1) The tax effect ansing on the above exceptional admimstration charges was a tax credit of £5 0 million (2010 tax credit of

£2 0m)

4 FINANCE INCOME AND CHARGES

Finance charges
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans
Hedge ineffectiveness on the cash flow hedges

Change tn fair value arising on derivative items not 1n a hedge relationship
Fair value through profit and loss — service concession arrangements

interest on obligations under finance leases
Interest on discounted provisions (note 18)
Other interest payable

Finance charges

Finance income (note 1)

Net finance charges

52 weeks ended

53 weeksended

1 April 2 April
2011 2010
£m £m (restated —
note 1)

(109.2) 95 3)
(0.6) (04)

- 10
2.7 27
@.n (12)
2.9 235
(0.8) 0 7)
(118.3) (101 8)

5.4 22
(112.9) (99.6)

() TFmance mcome includes £4 5 mulhon (2010 £0 3m), which represents the net of the expected return of £18 2 mullion (2010
£12 7m) on pension assets less interest on pension habilities of £13 7 mullion (2010 £12 4m)
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S FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT GAINS AND LOSSES

The net gains and losses recorded in the consolidated income statement n respect of financial mstruments were as

follows
52 weeks ended 53 weeks ended
1 April 2 April
2011 2010
£m £m (restated —
note 1)
At fair value through profit and loss
Hedge neffectiveness on the cash flow hedges (0.6) 04)
Service concession arrangements 2.7) 27D
Change m fair value of derivative items not 1n a hedge relationship - 10
Loans and receivables
Interest income at amortised cost 0.9 19
Impairment losses n respect of trade receivables (1.4) 3N
Other financial liabilities
Interest expense at amortised cost (112.1) (972)
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION
52 weeks ended 53 weeks ended
I April 2 Apnl
2011 2010
£m fm
The following itemns have been included n arriving at the operating loss
Staff costs (note 7) 175.7 147 1
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
- owned assets 92.4 837
- assets held under finance leases 6.1 07
Amortisation of intangibles 18.2 6 6
Operating lease charges
- plant and machinery 57 55
- other 83 54
PFI application cosis 4.4 23
Government grants towards capital projects 0.2) 0 2)
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (4.3) (0 6)
The analysis of the Group's auditors remuneration 1s as follows
£000 £000
- Fees payable to the partnership’s auditors for the audit of the annual accounts 76 36
- The audit of the partnership's subsidianes pursuant to legislation 335 164
Total audit fees 411 200
- Other services pursuant to legislation
- Tax services A 3
- Corporate finance services 150 -
Total non audit fees 150 5
Total 561 205
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7 EMPLOYEES AND DIRECTORS

The average monthly number of persons (including executive directors) employed by the Group during the period was

By segment

1&C

Muntcipal

Processing & Recycling
Landfill & Treatment

Energy from Waste

Shared services and corporate

52 weeks ended

53 weeks ended

1 April 2 Apnl
2011 2010
Number Number
(restated)
2,521 2,451
2,502 956
267 221
213 193
365 438
272 256
6,140 4,515

Prior year numbers have been restated due to a change in divisional structure reflecting changes in internal management

reporting following the Greenstar acquisition

Their aggregate remuneration comprised
Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other penston costs (note 24)
Redundancy and termination payments

Members’ remuneration

Members’ remuneration 1s as disclosed m note 20

Key management compensation

As at As at

1 April 2 April
2011 2010
£m £m
152.8 1272
12.9 104
6.5 65

3.5 30
175.7 147 1

The key management of the Group comprises the members of the Biffa executive team Details of key management's

remuneration are given below

Salaries and short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

Compensation for loss of office

Sums patd to third parties for directors’ services

Retirement benefits are accruing to two directors (2010

As at As at
1 April 2 Apnl
2011 2010
£m £m
35 24
0.3 03
1.2 -
- 05
5.0 32

two) under a defined benefit scheme at the period end
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8 TAXATION
52 weeks ended 53 weeks ended
1 April 2 Apnl
2011 2010
£m £fm
Current tax
Corporation tax at 28%
Prior period 40 (46)
Total current tax 40y 46
Deferred tax
Current penod 2L 21 8)
Prior period 7.7 (125)
Effect of change n rate (5.5) -
Total deferred tax (19.0) (34 3)
Total tax credit (23.0) (38 9)

Corporation tax 1s calculated at 28% of the estimated assessable loss for the period The credit for the period can be
reconciled to the loss per the income statement as follows

52 weeks ended 53 weeks ended
I April 2 Apnil
2011 2010
£m £m
Loss on ordinary activities before tax (134.0) (699
Loss on ordinary activittes multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax mn
UK of 28% (375 (19 6)
Effects of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 44.8 209
Non taxable income (40.9) 23 1)
Adjustment 1n respect of prior period 3.7 (171)
Tax losses not recogmsed for deferred tax 12.4 -
Effect of change n tax rate {5.5) -
Total taxation (23.0) (38 9)

In addition to the amount credited to the income statement, the following amounts of tax have been charged/(credited)
directly to equity

52 weeks ended 53 weeks ended

1 Apnil 2 Apnl
2011 2010
£m £m
Deferred tax

Deferred tax charge/(credit) arising on gain or loss on cash flow hedge 9.6 32
Deferred tax charge/(credit) ansing on actuarial gains and losses 0.2 43

Deferred tax charge/(credit) ansing on financial assets (0.9) -
9.4 75

Legislation reducing the main rate of corporation tax from 28% to 26% with effect from 1 April 2011 was substantively
enacted during the period Accordingly, current 1ax has been provided for at a rate of 28% and deferred tax has been
provided for at a rate of 26% n these financial statements  Further reductions to the main rate of corporation tax of 1%
per annum to 23% by 1 April 2014 have been announced by the government but have not yet been substantively enacted,
so their effect has not been reflected in these financial statements
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9 GOODWILL
As at As at As at
1 April 2 April 27 March
2011 2010 2009
£m £m £m
Cost

Balance at beginning of period 938.2 9372 -
Recognised on acquisition of subsidiary (note 25) 51.8 10 937 2
Recognised on acquisition of non controlling interest 0.4 - -
Balance at end of pertod 990.4 9382 9372

Accumulated impairment losses
Balance at beginning and end of period - - -
Net book amount at end of period 990.4 938 2 937 2

Goodwill acquired 1n a business combination ts allocated at acquisitron to the Group's cash generating umts ("CGUs"),
1dentified by business segments that are expected to benefit from that business combinatien, on a discounted cash flow
basis as follows

As at As at As at

1 April 2 Apnil 27 March

2011 2010 2009

£m £fm £m

1&C 692.9 692 9 6929
Mumicipal 9.8 98 98
Processing & Recycling 67.4 66 1 66 1
Landfill & Treatment 1383 1383 138 3
Energy from Waste 820 311 301
990 4 938 2 937 2

Prior year numbers have been restated due to a change in divisional structure reflecting changes 1n internal management
reporting following the Greenstar acquisition

The recoverable amount of a CGU 1s determined based on value-in-use calculations These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five year period Cash flows beyond the
five year period are extrapolated using an estimated nominal growth rate of -2 5% and 3 0% The growth rate does
exceed the long term average prowth rate for the business m certain cases, due to anticipated trends within the industry
that the CGU operates

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past performance and its expectattons for the market
development The weighted average growth rate used 1s consistent with the forecasts mcluded 1n industry reports The
pre-tax ciscount rate used 1s 7 38% These assumptions have been used for the analysis of each CGU within the business
segment

An impairment review 1n accordance with the approach and assumptions outhined above has been carried out for each
CGU and no mmpairment 1s considered reasonably probable as the recoverable amount of goodwill and net assets
exceeded 1ts carrying values by margins ranging from 4% to 384% An increase (n the discount rate of 0 5% would have
caused an impairment of £12 4 mullion in the Landfill & Treatment division An increase in the discount rate of 1 0%
would have caused an impawrment of £35 9 mullion wn the Landfill & Treatment division and an impairment of £41 2
milhon m the I&C division
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10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Brand Customer Computer WSCC pre- Total
contracts software contract costs
£m £m £m £m £m

Cost
On incorporation - - - - -
Acquisitions 950 96 4 43 - 1957
Disposals - - - - -
At 27 March 2009 950 96 4 43 - 195 7
Acquisitions - 04 - - 04
Additions - - 05 - 05
Disposals - - {(02) - (02)
At2 Apnl 2010 950 9 8 46 - 196 4
Acquisitions (note 25) - 271 17 - 28 8
Addtions - - 04 42 46
Disposals - - 08 - (08
At1 Apnl 2011 950 1239 59 42 2290
Accumulated amortisation
On incorporation - - - - -
Charge for period - (151 (an - (16 2)
Disposal - - - - -
At 27 March 2009 - (15 1) (rn - (16 2)
Charge for period - (150) (16) - (16 6)
Disposals - - 01 - 01
At 2 April 2010 - o) (26) - (327
Charge for period - (159 22) 01 (182)
Disposals - - 08 - 038
At 1 Aprl 2011 - (46 0) (4 0) 01 (50 1)
Net book amount
At 27 March 2009 950 8t3 32 - 179 5
At 2 Aprl 2010 950 66 7 20 - 163 7
At 1 April 2011 95.0 77.9 1.9 4.1 178.9

As at 2 April 2010 intangible assets include nternally generated software with a net book value of £0 4 million (2010
£0 4 mullion)

All amortisation charges m the period have been charged through other operating expenses

The following useful lives have been determuned for the intangible assets acquired during the period

Brand Indefinmte life
Customer contracts 14-25 years
Computer software 3-5 years
WSCC pre-contract costs 23 years
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11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost

On incorporation
Acquisitions
Additions
Disposals

A1 27 March 2009 (restated —note 1)

Acquisitions

Additions

Disposals

At 2 April 2010 (restated — note 1)
Acquisitions (note 1) (note 25)
Additions

Disposals

Atl Apnil 2011

Accumulated depreciation
Omn mcorporation

Charge for period

Disposal

Transfer to provisions

At 27 March 2009 (restated — note 1)

Charge for period

Disposal

Transfer to provisions

At 2 Apnl 2010 (restated — note 1)
Charge for penod

Disposal

Transfer to provisions

At 1 Apnil 2011

Net book amount

At 27 March 2009 (restated — note 1)

At 2 April 2010 (restated — note 1)
At 1 Aprl 2011

Land and Landfill Plant, Total
buildings sites vehicles and
equipment
£m fm £m £m
522 4399 1550 647 1
43 201 323 567
04) - (17 3) (77
561 460 0 170 0 686 1
- - 03 03
69 156 582 807
(0 4) - (118) (122)
626 4756 216 7 7549
42 - 46 4 506
14 4 124 538 806
(04) - (13 1) (13 5)
80 8 4880 303 8 8726
33 (377 (43 3) (843)
03 - 16 2 16 5
- (12) - (12)
(30) (389) 27 1) (65 0)
(3 5) (42 0) (40 9) (86 4)
01 - 115 116
- 09 - 09
(64) (80 0) {56 5) (142 9)
“53s) 451 (48 9) (98 3)
07 - 17 124
- 05 - 05
(102) (124 6) (93 7) (228 5)
531 421 1 142 9 6171
5612 3956 160 2 6120
70 6 363.4 210.1 644 1

(1) These amounts are 1n respect of tangible fixed assets acquired in connection with the acquisitton of the Greenstar group on 6

August 2010
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11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The carrying amount of the Group's property, plant and equapment includes £39 1 millien (2010 £15 9 mullion) n

respect of assets held under finance leases, analysed as follows

As at Asat As at
1 April 2 Apnl 27 March
2011 2010 2009
£m £m £m
Land and buldings 2.6 26 26
Landfill sites 12.6 133 14 0
Plant, vehicles and equipment 23.9 - -
39.1 159 16 6
Land and buildings and tandfill sites at net book amount comprise
Asat1 Apnl 2011 Asat 2 April 2010 As at 27 March 2009
(restated - note ) (restated — note 1)
Land Land Land
And Landfil! And Landfill And Landfill
Builldings Sites Buildings Sites Buildings Sites
£m £fm £m im Em £m
Freehold 40.7 150 6 310 1539 310 162 6
Long leasehold 19.4 1734 157 199 0 127 2120
Short leasehold 10.5 39.4 95 427 94 46 5
70.6 363.4 562 3956 531 4211

At | Apni 2011, the Group entered into contractual commtments for the acquisition of plant, property and equipment

amounting to £3 9 million (2010 £36 7 mullion)
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12 INVESTMENTS

Joint ventures

£m
On incorporatton -
Share of retained profit 17
Distribution of profits an
At 27 March 2009 -
Share of retained profit 11
Distribution of profits an

At2 April 2010 and 1 April 2011 -

Until 30 September 2009, the Group owned 50 per cent of the ordinary share capital, 500 ordinary shares of £1 each, of
Biogeneration Limited, a company mcorporated in the United Kingdom The remaining 50 per cent was owned by

E ON UK Plc, a wholly owned subsidiary of E ON AG On 1 October 2009, the Group purchased the remaining 50 per
cent, at which pomt Biogeneration Limuted became a wholly-owned subsidiary Biogeneration Limited's principal
activity 1s the generation of electricity using methane produced by four of the Company's landfill sites

In addition, the Group owned an interest via a contractual arrangement in the operations of Canford Renewable Energy
Limited, a company ncorporated in the United Kingdom whose principal activity 15 the generation and sale of electricity
from renewable sources The contractual arrangement came to end as at 28 February 2010 This interest was accounted
for using the equity method under [AS 28

As at Asat Asat
1 April 2 Apnl 27 March
2011 2010 2009
£m £m £fm
Group’s share of
Long term assets - - 03
Current assets - - 08
Current habilities - - (©5)
- - 06
Group’s share of
Income - 17 28
Expenses - (0 6) (10
Operating profit and profit before tax - 11 18
Tax - - (0 1)
Share of post tax results from jomnt ventures - 11 17

The jont ventures had no significant contingent hiabilities to which the Group 15 exposed and nor had the Group any
significant contingent liabihities 1n relation to 1ts interest m the joint ventures

Investments n joint ventures related entirely to the Energy from Waste division
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13 INVENTORIES

Raw matertals and consumables
Finished goods

Inventories consumed in the period ended 1 Aprl 2011 were £52 1 mullion (2010 £36.9 million)

down in the period totalled £0 1 million (2010 £0 | pullion)

As at As at As at
1 April 2 April 27 March
2011 2010 2009
£m fm fm
3.9 24 25

0.3 - -
4.2 24 25
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14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Amounts falling due within one year
Trade receivables
Less provision for impairment of receivables

Trade receivables — net
QOther debtors
Prepayments and accrued income

As at Asat Asat

1 Aprid 2 Apnl 27 March
2011 2010 2009
£m £m £m
131.5 107 4 1177
(1.1) (12) (14)
130.4 106 2 1163
10.3 05 154
15.0 126 138
155.7 119 3 1455

All amounts mcluded within prepayments and accrued income are due within one year

The average credit period taken on provision of services 1s 40 days Credit imits for new customers are assigned based
on the potential customer’s credit quality An external credit scoring system 1s used before assigning any credit limt
above £500 Management momitors the utilisation of credit hmuts regularly The trade receivables balance consists of a
large number of customer balances, represented largely by local account customers, and there 1s no sigmificant
concentration of credit nsk Included in the Group's trade receivables balance are debts with a carrying amount of £28 3
mullion (2010 £28 6 million) which are past due at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided as there has
not been a significant change m credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable The Group does not hold

any collateral over these balances

Apgeing of past due but not impaired receivables (days overdue)

As at As at As at

1 April 2 Aprl 27 March

2011 2010 2009

£m £m £m

1-30 days 23.0 255 24 4
31 -60 days 23 23 12
61-90 days 1.3 08 04
Over 91 days 1.7 - 10
28.3 286 270

The allowance for doubtful debts consists of individually impaired trade receivables which are 1n hquidation or are the

subject of legal action The impairment recognised represents the difference between the carrying amount of these trade

receivables and the present value of any expected recoveries The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances

Movement 1n the allowance for doubtful debts

Period ended Period ended Period ended

1 April 2 April 27 March

2011 2010 2009

£fm £m £m

Balance at the start of the period 1.2 14 -

Acquisitions 0.7 - 04

Impairment losses recognised 1.4 23 22
Amounts written off as uncollectible (22) (25) (12)

Amounts recovered during the period - - -

Balance at the end of the period 1.1 12 14

The members consider that the carrying amount of trade receivables approximates their fair value
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15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank and 1n hand
Short term deposits

As at Asat Asat

1 Apnl 2 Apnl 27 March
2011 2010 2009
£m £m fm
517 401 302
47.4 73 7 75 8
99 1 113 8 106 0

Short term deposits comprise £46 8 million (2010 £73 0 million) of funds on overnight deposit via a group cash poohng
facility and an mnsurance deposit of £0 6 muilion (2010 £0 7 million) which represents cash held as secunty for self

insurance obligations

16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

| Financial assets

As at Asat Asat
1 Aprl 2 Apnl 27 March
2011 2010 2009
£m £m £m
(restated — note 1) (restated — note 1)
At fair value through profit and loss.
Service concession arrangements 22.7 253 280
Loans and receivables
Liquidity fund 4.9 - -
27.6 253 280
Borrowings
Asat 1 Apnl 2011 As at 2 April 2010 As at 27 March 2009
Book Average Book Average Book Average
value Interest rate value Interest rate value mnterest rate
£m %o £m %o £m %
Current
Obligations under 8.9 5.2% 09 6 8% 20 8 6%
finance leases
Preference Shares - - - - 02 6 4%
Bank Loans 5.4 7.1% 225 6 5% 135 6 9%
24.3 234 157
Non-current
Obligations under 28.1 52% 134 6 8% 123 8 6%
finance leases
Bank loans 1,007.2 71% 9513 6 5% 966 8 9 6%
Loans and other debts 1,169.8 13.4% 8576 12 1% 774 8 11 9%
due to members
2,205.1 1,822 3 1,753 9

All borrowings are measured at amortised cost and are fully secured against the Group assets

All financial assets and financial habilities are Level 3
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

As at 1 Apnt 2011, the Group had drawn £649 2 million (2010 £688 3 million) agamst a Senior Term Facilities
Agreement, at an average rate of 5 2% (2010 6 5%) In addition, the Group has drawn down a £50 million Capial
Expenditure facility (2010 £ml) at an average rate of 4 1%, while it has an undrawn revolving loan facility of £74 0
million (2010 £74 0 million)

The Group has also fully drawn down £280 0 million against a Mezzanine debt facility, at an average rate of 114%
Under the terms of this facility, interest ts part paid and 1n part added to the outstanding capital amount In the period,
£17 2 million of interest has not been repaid but has been added to the Mezzanine debt facility (£41 Om 1n total)

Transaction costs of £28 7 million incurred 1n the originatien of these loans have been netted against the carrying value
of the loans The vanous tranches of these facilities have repayment dates ranging from 7-10 years from first utilisation,
with interest margins over LIBOR ranging from 3 25% to 6 00% (2010 2 75% to 5 50%)

The Class B, Class C and Class D partnership interests are repayable i full at par on an Exit, or if earlier 7 Febmary
2018, with any accrued nterest up to (but not including) that date following repayment of Wastelnvesiments LLP’s
loans to 1ts subsidiary undertakings at the amount of cash received n respect of those loans The principal terms of those
loans are as disclosed in note P4 to the Linuted Liability Partnership financial statements

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

As at 1 April 2011 Asat 2 Apnl 2010 As at 27 March 2009
(restated — note 1) (restated —note 1)
Book value Fawr value Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
£m £m £m £m £fm £m

Financial assets
At fair value through profit and loss

Service concession arrangements 22.7 227 253 253 280 280
Loans and receivables

Trade and other recervables (note

14) (note 1) 130.4 130.4 106 2 106 2 116 3 1163

Liquidity fund 4.9 4.9 - - - -

Cash and cash equivalents (note 15) 99.1 99.1 113 8 113 8 106 0 106 0
Total financial assets 257.1 257.1 2453 2453 250 3 2503

Fiancial habilities
At fair value through profit and loss
Dernvative financial instruments 4.2) (4.2) (375 (375 (49 5) (49 5)

Financial hiabthlies at amortised cost
Trade and other payables (note 17)

(note 1) {132.0) (1320) (115 3) (1153) (106 3) (106 3)

Borrowings (1,059.6) (1,085.3) (988 1) (1,018 1) (994 8) (1,081 7)

Loans and other debts due to

members (note 20) (1,169.8) (1,540.9) (857 6) (1,278 6) (774 8) (833 7)
Total financial ltabilities (2,365 6) (2,762,4) (1,998 5) (2,449 5) (1,925 4) (2,0712)

(1) Trade and other receivables exclude prepayments, other debtors and accrued income
() Trade and other payables exclude deferred income, taxation and social security and other non-financial habilities

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are determined as follows

Interest rate swaps are measured at the present value of future cash flows estimated and discounted based on the
applicable yield curves derived from quoted interest rates

The fair value of non-dervative financial assets and habilities are determimed based on discounted cash flow analysis
using current market rates for similar struments
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose 1t to a variety of financial risks market risk (including capital nisk management, cash flow
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and hquidity nsk The Group's overall nsk management programmes focus
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to mimimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance The Group uses derivative financial mstruments to hedge certain nisk exposures Financial risk
management in the above areas 1s carried out by the Head of Tax and Treasury together with the Chaef Fmancial Officer
under a policy approved by the board of directors The board approves written principles for interest rate risk and credit
risk, and the use of denivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial 'mstruments, and receives regular
reports on such matters

Capital risk management

The Group manages 1ts capital structure using a number of measures and taking into account its future strategic plans
Such measures include 1ts net interest cover and leverage ratios, which are included n 1ts banking covenants The Group
continues to remain comphant with all its banking covenants Total capital 1s calculated as ‘equity’ as shown n the
consohdated balance sheet plus net debt Net debt 1s calculated as total borrowings (including ‘current and non-current
borrowngs’ as shown 1 the consolidated balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group's interest bearing assets include cash and cash equivalents which earn interest at floating rates The Group’s
income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates The Group’s interest
rate nisk arises from long-term borrowmngs Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk Group policy 1s to maintain at least 50 per cent of its borrowings at fixed rate using interest rate swaps to
achieve this when necessary As at 1 April 2011, the Group had interest rate swaps with a notional prmcipal amount of
£650 mulhon (2010 £650 milhion)
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Cash flow interest rate risk (continued)

The mterest rate nsk profile of the Group's financial assets and Liabihities were as follows

As at Asat As at
1 April 2 Apnl 27 March
2011 2010 2009
£m £m £fm
Financial liabilities
Floating rate financial liabilities (excluding derivatives) 1,022.6 973 8 980 3
Floating rate financial habihties (derivatives) 4.2 375 49 5
Fixed rate financial liabilities 1,206.8 8719 780 3
Non-interest bearing habilities 132.0 1153 106 3
Total financial habilities 2,365.6 1,998 5 1,925 4
As at As at As at
1 April 2 Apnl 27 March
2011 2010 2009
£m £m £fm

(restated — note 1) (restated—note 1)

Financial assets

Liquidity fund 4.9 - -

Floating rate financial assets (cash and cash equivalents) 99.1 113 8 106 O
Service concession arrangements 22,7 253 280
Non-interest bearng financial assets 130.4 106 2 116 3
Total financial assets 257.1 2453 250 3

(1) The interest on fixed rate financial habilities 15 fixed until matunty of the tnstrument The interest on floating rate
financial mstruments 1s re-set at intervals of less than one year The other financial assets and liabilities of the Group
that are not included n the above tables are non-interest bearmg and therefore not subject to interest rate risk

(n) Fixed rate and non-interest bearing financiat assets and habilities are exposed to fair value nterest rate nsk and
floating rate financial assets and liabilities to cashflow interest rate risk

The minimum lease payments under finance leases fall due as follows

As at Asat As at
1 April 2 Apnl 27 March
2011 2010 2009
£m £m £m
Not later than one year 11.0 20 20
Later than one year but not more than five 25.0 80 80
More than five years 16.4 187 194
52.4 287 294

Future finance charges on finance leases (15.4) (14 4) (151)
Present value of finance lease liabilities 37.0 143 143
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Derivative financial instruments

As at As at As at
1 April 2 Apnl 27 March
2011 2010 2009
£m £m £m
Financial habilities camed at fair value
Derivatives that are not designated in hedge accounting relationships
Basis rate swaps - - (orn
Denvatives that are designated m hedge accounting relationships
Fuel hedges 0.3 - -
Hedge meffectiveness on cash flow hedges - 02 (038)
Interest rate swaps (45) (377 (47 6)
(42) (375 (49 5)

There are three interest rate swaps which mature in 2011 The floating rate receive leg on the interest rate swaps 1s three
months LIBOR, with a fixed pay leg of between 5 17% - 5 78% on all swaps All swaps are net settled and have a total
notional principal amount of £650 mullon In addition, three further interest rate swaps have been entered mto which
commence in 2011 upon expiry of the current interest rate swaps The floating rate receive leg on the nterest rate swaps
1s again three months LIBOR, with a fixed pay leg of between 1 455% - 1 8587% on all swaps All swaps are net settled
and have a total notional principal amount of £513 million

Currency risk

The Group has no exposure to currency arrangements

Price risk

The Group 15 not materially exposed to any equity securities or commodities price risks
Credit risk

Credit nisk 1s managed on a group basis as appropnate Credit nsk arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative
financial nstruments and deposits with banks and financial mstitutions, as well as credit exposures to customers,
including outstanding recervables For banks and financial institutions, only independently rated parties with a mmimum
rating of ‘A’ are accepted Management does not expect any significant losses of recetvables that have not been provided
for as shown in Note 14 Trade and other recervables Further detail on trade receivables 15 included in Note 14

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, which 1s net of impairment losses,
represents the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk These amounts are receivable from local authority clients,
hence are not exposed to significant credit risk Given the above factors, the Board does not consider it necessary to
present a detailed analysis of credit risk

Liquidity nisk

The Group ensures that there are sufficient commutted loan facilities in order to meet short term business requirements,
after taking into account cash flows from operations and its holding of cash and cash equivalents The financial market
turbulence and associated 1lliquadity expenienced n the credit markets throughout the 2010/11 financial year has not
impacted the Group’s ability to meet 1ts financial requirements

The expected undiscounted cash flow of the Group’s financial habilittes (including derivatives), by remaming

contractual maturity, at the balance sheet date 1s shown below Balances due within 12 months equal therr carrying
balances as the impact of the discount 15 not sigmificant
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

As at 27 March 2009

Due within Due Due  Due five
one year  between  between years and Total
one and two and beyond
two years five years
£fm £m £m fm £m
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings, excluding finance lease habilities 137 225 945 8650 995 7
Loans and other debts due to members - - - 694 4 694 4
Finance lease habilities (including interest) 20 20 60 194 294
Interest payments on borrowings 510 505 1516 2951 548 2
Fixed rate members’ remuneration - - - 8337 8337
Other non-interest bearmg habtlities 846 - - - 846
Derivative financial habilities
Net settled interest rate swaps 238 237 55 - 530
175.1 98.7 257.6 2,707.6 3,239.0
As at2 Apnl 2010
Due within Due Due  Due five
one year  between  between years and Total
one and two and beyond
two years five years
£m £m £m £m £m
Non-derivative financial habilties
Borrowngs, excluding finance lease liabihies 225 270 900 8288 968 3
Loans and other debts due to members - - - 694 4 694 4
Fance lease liabilities (including interest) 20 20 60 187 287
Interest payments on borrowings 44 4 455 139 8 275.8 5055
Fixed rate members’ remuneratton - - - 1,542 9 1,542 9
Other non-interest beanng habihties 945 - - - 94 5
Derivative financial habihties
Net settled interest rate swaps 306 110 - - 416
194.0 85.5 235.8 3,360.6 3,875.9
Asat 1l Apnl 2011
Due within Due Due  Due five
one year  between  between years and Total
one and two and beyond
two years five years
£m £m £m £m £m
Non-derivative financial habilities
Borrowings, excluding finance lease hiabilities 154 415 116 0 806 3 9792
Loans and other debts due to members - - - 860 7 8607
Finance lease habihities {including interest) 110 87 163 164 524
Interest payments on borrowings 507 508 147 4 2979 546 8
Fixed rate members’ remuneration - - - 2,1294 2,129 4
Other non-1nterest bearing liabilitres 1154 - - - 1154
Derivative financial habihities
Fuel hedges 03 - - - 03)
Net settled interest rate swaps 117 {035) 32) - 80
2039 100.5 2765 4,110.7 4,691.6
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determimed based on the exposure to mnterest rates for both derivative and non-
denvattve instruments at the balance sheet date For floating rate habilities, the analysis 15 prepared taking an average of
the habihity outstanding over the period

If interest rates had been 2% higher/ 1% lower and all other vanables were held constant, the Group's result for the
period ended | April 2011 would increase/decrease by the amounts shown m the table below Thus analysis assumes
that, where interest rates are currently less than 1%, any reduction 1s capped at zero

2% ncrease 1% decrease

1n interest In interest
rates rates
£m £m
Gain/(loss) - dertvative financral instruments 130 (4 8)
(Loss)/gain - variable rate financial instruments (197 99
{6.7) 5.1
Reconcthation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial assets
FVTPL FVTPL
Service Dernivative
concession financial
arrangements instruments
£m £m
Balance at 27 March 2009 280 (49 5)
Total gawns or losses
- w profit or loss 0e) 06
- 1n other comprehensive income 2n 114
Balance at 2 April 2010 253 (375)
Total gans or losses
- 1 profit or loss (15 {05
- 1n other comprehensive income (11) 338
Balance at 1 April 2011 22,7 (4.2)
17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
As at Asat As at
1 April 2 Apnl 27 March
2011 2010 2009
£m £m fm
Current
Trade payables 93.6 78 1 719
Taxation and social securnity 65.3 658 49 0
Accruals and deferred income 257 224 24 1
Other payables 250 285 208
210.1 194 8 165 8

Included within accruals and deferred income 1s £1 2 million (2010 £0 4 million) 1n relation to government grants which
will be recognised 1n more than one year
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18 PROVISIONS

Land Insurance Other Total
reinstatement
and
environmental
£m £m £m £m
On incorporation - - - -
Acquisitions 622 27 - 649
Utilised (133) (28) - (16 1)
Charged to income 83 27 - 110
Discount elimination 24 - - 24
Transfers from fixed assets / other assets 06 - - 06
At 27 March 2009 60.2 2.6 - 62.8
Utihised (15 5) (13) - (16 8)
Charged to income 183 22 - 205
Discount elimination 25 - - 25
Transfers from fixed assets / other assets 23 - - (23)
At 2 Apni 2010 63.2 35 - 66.7
Acquisitions - - 51 51
Unhsed (17 3) 04 on (17 0)
Charged to income 110 10 (02) 118
Discount elimination 29 - - 29
Transfers from fixed assets / other assets 13 41 - 54
At1 April 2011 611 9.0 4.8 74.9
Provisions have been analysed between current and non-current as follows
As at As at As at
1 Aprd 2 Apnl 27 March
2011 2010 2009
£m £m £m
Current 18.5 16 4 176
Non-current 56.4 503 452
74.9 66 7 628

Land reinstatement and environmental

As part of its normal activities, the Group undertakes to reinstate 1ts landfill sites and to maintam the sites and control
leachate and methane emissions from the sites Provision 13 made for these anticipated costs Reinstatement costs are
incurred as each site 1s filled, and 1n the period immediately after its closure

Maintenance and leachate and methane control costs are incurred as each site 15 filled and for a number of years post
closure Long term aftercare provisions included 1n Landfill reinstatement and environmental provisions have been
discounted at a rate of 5 6% (2010 6%)

Environmental control costs are incurred as each site s filled and for a number of year post closure This period can
vary significantly from site to site, depending upon the types of waste landfilled and the speed at which 1t decomposes,
the way the site 1s engineered and the regulatory requirements specific to the site

Insurance

Provisions for insurance claims are made as set out in the accounting policies note on page 16 The associated outflows
are estimated to arise over a period of up to five years from the balance sheet date
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18 PROVISIONS (CONTINUED)
Other
Other provisions include an onerous contracts provision and a dilapidations provision
A provision was recognised during the year for onerous contracts arising on the acquisition of Verdant Group plc  The
provision has been calculated by discounting management’s best estimate of the future operating losses from the
contract Management are taking all reasonable steps to reduce costs incurred and the estimate will be reviewed m future

years as the contract progresses

A provision was also recognised during the period on the acqusition of the Greenstar group for expected dilapidation
costs to be incurred

19 DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax assets and habilittes recognised by the Group and movements thereon dunng
the current period

Accelerated  Disallowed Retirement Fair Intangible Recogmised tax lotal
1ax provisions benefit value of assets  losses carried
depreciatron obligation financial forward
mstruments
£m fm £m fm £m £m £m
On incorporation - - - - - - -
Acqusitions 1146 (58) (0 8) - 260 - 1340
(Credit) / charge to income (112) 19 49 - 37N - @én
Credit to SOCI 17 - (6 6) (14 1) - - (19 0)
At 27 March 2009 105.1 3.9 (2.5) (14.1) 22.3 - 106.9
(Credit) / charge to income (8 8) 237 13 - G - (34 3)
Charge to SOCI 06) - 43 32 - - 69
At 2 April 2010 95.7 (27.6) 3.1 (109) 19.2 - 79.5
Acquisitions (15) - - - 75 (43) 17
(Credit) / charge to income (300) 64 16 - 26 03 (191
Charge to SOCI 04 - 02 96 - - 94
At1 Aprit 2011 63.8 (21 2) 49 (1.3) 29.3 (4.0) 71.5

Deferred tax assets and Liabilities are offset when there 15 a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax habilines

The offset amounts are as follows

As at As at Asat

1 Apnil 2 Apnl 27 March

2011 2010 2009

£m fm £m

Deferred tax assets (26.5) (38 5) (20 %)
Deferred tax liabilities 98.0 1180 127 4
715 795 106 9
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20 TOTAL MEMBERS’ INTERESTS

Equity Debt
Class A Reserves Total Class B Class C Class D Total
Partnership Parmership Partnershup Partnership
Equuty Debt Debt Debt
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

On incorporation - - - - - - -
Introduced by members 104 - 104 614 4 800 - 694 4
Loss for the pertod - (152 9) (152 9) - - - -
Members remuneration - - - 66 7 137 - 804
charged as an expense
27 March 2009 (restated — 104 (152.9) (142.5) 6811 93.7 - 774 8
note 1)
Introduced by members - - - - - - -
Loss for the penod - 959 {95 9) - - - -
Members remuneration - - - 687 141 - 828
charged as an expense
2 April 2010 (restated ~ 10.4 (248.8) (238.4) 749 8 107.8 - 857.6
note 1)
Introduced by members - - - - - 166 3 166 3
Loss for the period - (233 2) (233 2) - - - -
Acquisition of non - 02) (02) - - - -
controlling interest
Members remuneration - - - 992 245 222 1459
charged as an expense
1 Apnil 2011 10.4 (482 2) (471.8)] 849.0 1323 188.5 1,169 8

Members’ capital

Members' capital contributions are determined by the Management Board, having regard to the working capatal needs of
the business Individual members' capital contmbutions are repayable at the discretion of the Management Board

The book value of members’ capital 1s consistent with fair value in the current pertod

Allocation of profits and losses

The basis on which profits and losses are altocated 1s described in the note (u) within the accounting policies  Loans and
others debts due to members represent profits not yet paid to members Such profits are payable at the discretion of the
Management Board No amounts due to members have been distributed as cash in the period and the amounts due to

members are not expected to be paid within one year

In the event of a winding-up, loans and other debts due to members rank equally with unsecured creditors. Members'
capital and other reserves rank after unsecured creditors

Members' profit shares

The average monthly number of members during the period was 49 The consolidated loss attributable to the members
with the largest entitlement to profits and losses n the period 15 £83 2 million
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21 CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

22

Loss for the period
Adjustments for
Exceptional items
Finance income
Finance charges
Share of results of jomnt ventures before taxation
Taxation
Members remuneration charged as an expense
Operating profit
Amortisation of intangibles
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Other
(Increase)/decrease 1 mventories
(Increase)/decrease m debtors
(Decrease)/increase 1n creditors
(Decrease)/increase 1n provisions
Change 1n fair value of cash flow hedges
Total net cash flow from operating activities

52 weeks ended 53 weeks ended
1 April 2 Apnl
2011 2010
£m £m (restated —
note 1)
(279.9) (113 8)
29.0 75
54 (22)
118.3 101 8
- (1
- (38 9)
145.9 328
7.9 361
18.2 166
98.5 864
(4.3) (06)
(0.2) -
(0.1) 01
(10.5) 238
(16.6) 229
(4.8) 34
(0.3) -
87.8 188 7

RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW TO MOVEMENT IN NET DEBT

Net (decrease)/increase mn cash and cash equivalents
Net drawdown of borrowings, loans due to members and finance leases

Other non cash movements
Movement 1n net debt in the pertod
Net debt at start of period

Net debt at end of period

Analysis of net debt

Cash and cash equivalents
Finance leases

Bank loans

Loans due to members

52 weeks ended 53 weeks ended
1 April 2 April
2011 2010
£m £m
147 78
(383.7) (76 1)
(398.4) (68 3)
(1,7319) (1,663 6)
(2,130.3) (1,731 9)
As at Asat

1 April 2 Apnl
2011 2010
£m £m

991 113 8
37.0) (14 3
(1,022.6) 973 8)
(1,169 8) (857 6)
(2,130.3) (1,731 9)
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23 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS - MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future mimmum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows

Asat 1 Apnil20t1 Asat2 Apnl 2010
Land and Other Land and Other
buildings butldings

£m £m £m £m
Within one year 7.5 8.0 30 39
Between one and five years inclusive 26.5 16.0 109 42
After five years 63.2 2.5 289 -
97.2 26.5 42 8 g1

The Group leases various offices, warehouses under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The leases have various
terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights
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24 PENSION AND POST RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contrtbution schemes

Pension costs for defined contribution schemes are as follows

As at Asat As at

1 Apnl 2 Apnl 27 March

2011 2010 2009

im im £m

Defined contribution schemes 1.1 11 08

Defined benefit schemes

The Company operates a defined benefit scheme, the Biffa Pension Scheme (the "Scheme"), formerly the UK Waste
Pension Scheme, for employees of Biffa Waste Services Limited and Biffa Limited The scheme offers both pensions in
retirement and death benefits to members Prior to 31* March 2007 there were a number of employees who held benefits
in the Severn Trent Pension Scheme and the Severn Trent Senior Staff Pension Scheme These members joined the Biffa
Pension Scheme with effect from 1% April 2007 Coniributions to the Scheme for the year begmming 2" Aprl 2011 are
currently subject to ongoeimg negotiation, but are expected to be £6 6 million

There 1s an addittonal £1 1 million (2010 £1 1 mullion) of unfunded defined benefit promise which has been included
within the habihities The accounting policy used to recognise the actuanal gains and losses 1s the Statement of
Comprehensive Income (SOCI) approach

A full actuarial valuation of the scheme was carried out as at 31" March 2009 and has been updated to 1% April 2011 by
a qualified independent actuary The major assumptions used by the actuary were (in nominal terms) as follows

2011 2010 2009
Discount rate 5.6% 5 6% 58%
Rate of salary increase 3.3% 3% 4 0%
Pension increases
RPI with floor of 0%, cap of 2 5% pa 2.2% 23% 23%
RP1 with floor of 0%, cap of 5% pa 3.2% 34% 25%
RP] with floor of 0%, cap of 6% pa 33% 35% 25%
Rate of RPI inflation 3.3% 35% 25%
Rate of CPI inflation 26% n/a n/a

* In excess of any Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP)

The expected future lifetime of a male pensioner currently aged 65 15 20 4 years The expected future hfetime from age
65 of a male member currently aged 50 1s 23 0 years The expected future lifetime of a female pensioner currently aged
65 15 23 4 years The expected future hferime from age 65 of a female member currently aged 50 1s 26 2 years

The assumptions used in determining the overall expected return of the scheme have been set with reference to yields
available on government bonds and appropnate risk margins
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24 PENSION AND POST RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

The assets in the Scheme and the expected rates of return were

2011 2011 2010 2010 2009 2009
£m % £m % £m %
Asset category '
Equities 9112 8.3% 972 85% 972 8 0%
Bonds 809 48% 884 50% 830 49%
Properties and
mfrastructure 327 68% 328 7 0% 232 6 0%
Hedge funds 428 83% 365 85% : .
Other 239 42% 15 44% 20 05%
Total 2725 2564 205 4
Expected return on
assets 67% 7% 64%

* It should be noted that the asset portfolio was changed shortly after the 2009 year end, and therefore a lower rate of

6 1% representing the new asset allocation was used n respect of the expected returns on assets over the year 2009/10

Actual return on
assets over the
period 14.4

The amounts recognised n the balance sheet are determined as follows

Present value of defined benefit obligations
Fair value of funded plan assets
Net asset/(lability) recognised

Change in defined benefit obligation

Present value of defined benefit obligations at start of period

Present value of defined benefit obligations acquired
Current service cost

Curtailments

Past service cost

Plan participant contributions

Interest cost

Actuarial loss/(gain) on habilities

Age related rebates

Benefits paid

48 1 (26 2)
2011 2010 2009
£m £m £m
(253.5) (245 3) (2142 l
272.5 256 4 2054 -
19.0 111 (8 8)
2011 2010 2009
£m fm fm
2453 2142 -
- - 2153
58 65 78
- (11} 17
0.3 07 10
1.6 18 24
13.7 124 137
(4.2) 202 (128)
0.2 02 -
9.2) (9 6) (1135)
253.5 2453 2142
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24 PENSION AND POST RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Change n plan assets

2011 2010 2009
£m £m £m
Fair value of plan assets at start of period 256.4 2054 -
Fair value of plan assets acquired - - 2153
Expected return on plan assets 18.2 127 154
Actuanal gam/(loss) on assets 3.8) 358 (36 4)
Employer contributions 9.1 101 202
Plan participant contributions 1.6 18 24
Age related rebates 0.2 02 -
Benefit paid (92.2) (9 6) (115
Fair value of plan assets at end of period 272.5 256 4 205 4
Amounts recognised 1n the iIncome statement
2011 2010 2009
£m £m £m
Current service cost (note 1) 5.8 635 78
Settlements / Curtailments (note 1) - (1n an
Interest cost (note 1) 13.7 12 4 137
Expected return on assets (note 11) (18.2) azxmn (15 4)
Recognised past service cost (note 1) 0.3 07 10
Total 1.6 58 54

(1) These costs are included within operating costs in the income statement
(1) The expected return on assets less the wnterest cost 1s included within finance income in the mcome statement
(111} These costs are included within exceptional costs n the income statement.

Amount recognised in the SOCI

2011 2010 2009
£m £m £m
Actuanial (gains)/losses (0.4) (155) 236
(0.4) (15 5) 236
Percentage of scheme habilities (0.2%) (6 3%) 0%

The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in the SOCI since incorporation of IFRS 1s a cumulative
loss of £7 7 mullion, less a deferred tax credit of £2 0 million

History of experience gams and losses

2011 2010 2009
Experience adjustments arising on scheme assets
Amount (£m) (3.8) 358 416)
Percentage of scheme assets (1 4%0) 14 0% (20 3%)
Experience adjustment arising on scheme habilities
Amount (£m) 42 (202) 12 8
Percentage of the present value of the scheme liabilities 1 7% 8 2% (6 0%)
Present value of scheme habilities (£m) (253 5) (245 3) (2142)
Fair value of scheme assets (£m) 272 5 256 4 205 4
Surplus/(deficit} (£m) 190 111 (38)

50




WASTEINVESTMENTS LLP
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the 52 weeks ended 1 April 2011

25 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The Group has adopted IFRS 3 (2008) ‘Business Combimations’ and IAS 27 (2008) ‘Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements’ with effect from 3 April 2010 The financial impact of the adoption of this standard was to
mcrease exceptional costs and reduce goodwill by £18 7 mullion due to the requirement under IFRS 3 (2008) to expense
acquisition-related costs

Acquisition of Greenstar

On 6th August 2010, Montagu Private Equity and Global Infrastructure Partners (via Wastelnvestments LLP) completed
their acquisition of 100% of the ordinary share capital of Greenstar Holdings Limuted (“Greenstar™) from NTR plc
(“NTR™), for a total consideration of approximately £01 million Greenstar was subsequently transferred, at market
value, to Biffa Group Limited on 13 August 2010

Greenstar 15 one of the leading recycling-led waste management service providers in the UK, providing solutionsto a
large number of blue chip clients i the commercial and industrial sectors The acquisition of Greenstar 15
complementary and provides a strong fit with Biffa’s strategy to grow its recycling footprint and increase its capacity to
provide innovative and tailored waste management solutions to 1ts customers n the UK

The Group acquired the following aggregate assets and hiabilities during the year

Book value Fair value

£m £m

Property, plant and equipment 555 506
Intangible assets 861 288
Inventories 18 15
Trade and other recervables 313 306
Cash and cash equivalents 33 28
Interest-bearing liabilities (40 6) (40 6)
Provisions 04 Gn
Trade and other payables (26 8) 279
Current tax assets 02 02
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 41 ("N
Net ident:ifiable assets/(liabilities) 1145 392
Goodwill (note 9) 518
Total consideration 91.0
Cons:deration paid, satistied in cash 910
Net cash outflow 91 0

The fair value of the financial assets includes trade receivables with a fair value of £23 3 million and a gross contractual
value of £23 3 milhon The best estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash flows not to be collected are £nil

The goodwill of £51 8 mullion arising from the acquisition consists primarily of the future economic benefit which 1s
expected to anse from the Greenstar recycling facilities None of the goodwill 1s expected to be deductible for income
tax purposes

Acquisition-related costs (included 1n exceptional costs) amount to £18 7 million

Greenstar contributed £111 9 million revenue and £1 1 mullion to the Group's profit for the period between the date of
acqusition and the balance sheet date

If the acquisition of Greenstar had been completed on the first day of the financial year, group revenues for the period
would have been £830 6 mllion and group loss before tax would have been £136 0 million
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26 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with joint venture undertakings
52 weeks ended 53 weeks ended

1 April 2 Apnl

2011 2010

£m £m

Sales to Biogeneration Limited - 053
Sales to Canford Renewable Energy Limited - 12
- 17

All sales to the Group's jomnt ventures are made on an arm's length basis
Transaction with investees

Certain members of the LLP are employed by Biffa Waste Services Limted, a subsidiary of the LLP, and provide
management services to the Wastelnvestments LLP Group as a whole Their remuneration m theiwr capacity as
employees of Biffa Waste Services Limited 1s disclosed in the notes to the financial statements of that company and m
the notes to these consolidated financial statements (see note 7)

Montagu Private Equity, an investee in Wastelnvestments LLP, the ultimate parent of Biffa Group Limited, receive a fee
of £250,000 per annum for management services provided Fees incumed in the period and charged to the mmcome
statement are £249,315 (2010 £254,110) plus expenses of £29,812 (2010: £22,686), totalling £279,127 (2010
£276,796) A total of £280,325 (2010 £227,310) was paid during the period n respect of these services

Additional fees of £847,880 (2010 £116,896) have been charged to the mcome statement in the period relating to
support services provided by Montagu Private Equity, of which £637,090 (2010: £116,896) were pard in the period, the
balance of £210,790 bewng accrued for Of these fees, £200,000 related to drector services provided in respect of M
Keough

Global Infrastructure Partners ("GIP"), also an investee 1n WasteInvestments LLLP, the ultimate parent of Biffa Group
Limited, receive a fee of £250,000 per annurn for management services provided. Fees incurred in the year and charged
to the income statement are £249,315 (2010 £254,110) A total of £250000 (2010 £204,624) was paid during the
period n respect of these services

A further £1,074,281 (2010 £1,240,136) has been charged to the income statement n the period in respect of suppon
services provided by GIP, of which £872,480 (2010 £1,031,622) were pad in the year, the balance of £201,801 (2010
£208,514) bemng accrued for

Fees of £177,885 were paid in the period to J D G McAdam Associates, m respect of director services provided A
further £58,365 was paid to J D G McAdam Associates in respect of support services provided
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27

28

29

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Biffa must satisfy the financial secunity requirements of environmental agenctes in order to ensure that it 1s able to
discharge the obligations i the licences or permits that the Group holds for its landfill sites Biffa satisfies these
financial security requirements by providing financial security bonds The amount of financial security which s required
15 determimed 1n conmjunction with the regulatory agencies, as 1s the method by which assurance 1s provided Biffa has
existing bond arrangements in England and Wales of approximately £93 million outstanding at 1 April 2011 (2 Apnl
201¢ £92 mullion) 1n respect of the Group's operaticnal sites where the Group has financial security obligations under
the Environment Agency’s "fit and proper person” test No liability 15 expected to arnse m respect of either bonds or
guarantees

SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS

The Group's Municzpal division has a number of contracts with local authorities In the period ended 1 Apnil 2011, these
contracts generated revenues of £99 7 milhon (2010 £53 1 milhon) These contracts have an average remaining term to
expiry of 4 years, ranging between 1 to 9 years

In addition to this, the Group has three integrated waste management contracts with Leicester City Council (25 years -
awarded m 2003), Isle of Wight Council (18 years - awarded m 1997) and West Sussex County Council (25 years —
awarded m 2010) The concessions vary as to the extent of their obligations, but typically require the construction and
operatton of an asset during the concession period The operation of the assets may include the provision of waste
management services such as collection, recycling and disposal Typically at the end of concession periods the assets are
returned to the concession owner

These three contracts generated revenue of £37 9 mullion n period ended 1 April 2011 (2010 £26 7 milhion) The Group
has adopted IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements in the period, which alters the way that these arrangements are
accounted for — refer to note 1

ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTIES

The members consider the jomnt ultimate controlling parties to be Montagu Private Equity and Global Infrastructure
Partners
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Management Board and Advisers

Management Board
- HSBC Global Trustee Custody Nommee (UK) Limited (on behalf of Montagu Private Equity)
- Global Infrastructure Partners Bravo Heldings (Cayman) Limited

Designated Members

- HSBC Global Trustee Custody Nomunee (UK) Limited
- GIP Bravo Holdings (Cayman) Limited

Auditors

Deloitte LLLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

United Kingdom

Solicitors

Lmklaters
One Silk Street
London EC2Y 8HQ

Registered Office

Coronation Road

Cressex

High Wycombe
Buckimghamshire HP12 3TZ
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Members Report

The Management Board presents 1ts report and the audnted financial statements of Wastelnvestments LLP for the 52 week
period ended | Apnil 2011

Principal activities

The principal activity of the LLP 15 that of a holding company The primcipal activities of its subsidiaries are the provision of
integrated waste management services, comprsing collection, treatment and recycling, and disposal of waste and the
provision of energy services with the majority of its business in the United Kingdom

Legal structure
The legal structure of the LLP 15 as stated m the Wastelnvestments Limited Liability Partnership Agreement ("the Partnership
Agreement") dated 17 April 2008

Designated members
The designated members of WasteInvestments LLP during the period were

HSBC Global Trustee Custody Nominee (UK) Limited
GIP Bravo Holdings (Cayman) Limited

Members' profit shares and drawings
Members are remunerated solely out of the profits of the LLP  Allocation of profits to the members 1s made n accordance
with the terms of the Partnership Agreement Cash distributions are made at the Management Board's discretion after due

regard to the amounts determined by the Management Board to be reasonably necessary to meet the working capital needs of
the LLP

Financing
The LLP 1s financed through members' capital and the ongoing results arising out of 1ts principal activities
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Members' responsibilities statement in respect of the financial statements

The members are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements 1n accordance with applicable law
and regulations

The Limted Liability Partnership Regulations 2001 made under the Limited Liability Partnerships Act 2000 requires the
members to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the members have elected to prepare the
parent partmership financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) Under that law, the members must also not approve the financial
staternents unless they are satisfied that that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the partnership and of the
profit or loss of the partnership for that period

In preparing the parent partnership financial statements, the members are required to

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
make Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements, and

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s nappropriate to presume that the partnership
will continue 1n business

The members are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the partnership’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the partnership and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006, as apphcable to limited hability partnerships They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the partnership and hence for taking reasonable steps for the preventton and
detection of fraud and other iregularities

The members are responsible for the mantenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information mcluded on the
parmership’s website Legislation 1n the Umited Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation 1n other jurisdictions

These responsibilities are fulfilled by the Management Board on behalf of the members

On behalf of the Management Board

2y June 2011
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Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Administrative expenses

Operating profit

Interest receivable and similar income
Profit for the period before members’ remuneration and profit shares

Profit for the period before members’ remuneration and profit share

Members’ remuneration charged as an expense
Result of the period available for discretionary division among members

52 weeks ended 1

53 weeks ended 2

April 2011 April 2010
£000 £°000
(76) -
(76) -
145.980 82,866
145,904 82,866
145,904 82,866
(145,904) (82,866)

All the amounts above relate to contiuing operations and are attributable to the members of WasteInvestments LLP

No separate Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses has been presented as all such gains and losses have been dealt

with 1n the Profit and Loss account above

There 15 no matenal difference between the result for the financial period above and 1ts historical cost equivalent
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BALANCE SHEET
As at As at
Notes 1 April 2 Apnil
2011 2010
£°000 £000
Assets
Non-Current assets
[nvestments P2 10,000 10,000
10,000 10,000
Current Assets
Debtors P4 1,169,856 857,646
Cash at Bank 287 363
1,170,143 858,009
Net Assets Attributable to Members 1,180,143 868,009
REPRESENTED BY:
Members interests classified as debt under FRS 25
Class B Partnership Interests Ps (849,072) (749,830)
Class C Partnership Interests P35 (132,274) (107,816)
Class D Partnership Interests P35 (188,434) -
(1,169,780) (857,646)
Net assets 10,363 10,363
Members® Equity
Class A Partnership Equity P35 10,363 10,363

The financial statements of Wastelnvestments LLP, registered number OC334618, on pages 57 to 63 were approved on
behalf of the members of Wastelnvestments LLP by

21 June 2011
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash generated from operations

Acquisitions
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings
Net cash outflow for acquisitions

Transactions with members
Contributions by members
Net cash inflow from transactions with members

Financing
Loans made to subsidiary undertakings
Net cash outflow from financing activities

Net movement in cash and cash equivalents

Reconcibiation to net cash

Net movement n cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of penod
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
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52 weeks ended

53 weeks ended

1 Apnl 2 Apnl

2011 2010

£°000 £°000
(76)

- 231

- 231

(76) 231

(76) 231

363 132
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Accounting Policies

These entity only financial statements of Wastelnvestments LL.P are prepared on the going concern basis (as discussed
below), under the historical cost convention and in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and accounting standards
generally accepted m the Umted Kingdom ("UK GAAP") The financial statements have also been prepared in compliance
with the Statement of Recommended Practice "Accounting by Limited Liability Partnerships” as 1ssued by The Consultative
Commuttee of Accountancy Bodies, March 2006

The principal accounting policies which have been applied consistently throughout the pertod are set out below
Going concern

Wastelnvestments LLP 1s the parent company of the Group The following factors have been considered as part of the
Group’s going concern review

* Liqudity - the Group has considerable financial resources in the form of long term commutted borrowimg facilities
(detailed 1 note 16 to the financial statements)

e Covenants - the Group 1s required to comply with certain covenants under both the Senior Finance and Mezzanine
debt facilites With reference to this, the Group’s forecasts and projections have been reviewed

¢ Contracts - the Group has a large number of contracts with its customers and supphers across different industries
This includes long-term municipal and mtegrated waste management contracts (detailed in note 30 to the financial
statements)

After reviewing the above and taking into account current and future developments as discussed in the Business Review n
the accounts of Biffa Group Limited, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company, and the Group, are well
placed to manage 1ts business nisks successfully, despite the current uncertam economic outlook, and have adequate resources
1o continue 1n operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis 1n
preparing the annual report and accounts

Investments

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are shown at cost, plus incidental expenses less any provision for mpairment
Annually, the members consider whether any events or circumstances have occurred which indicate that the carrying value of
fixed asset investments may not be recoverable If such circumstances do exist, a full impairment review 1s undertaken to
establish whether the carrying amount exceeds the higher of net realisable value or value m use If this 1s the case, an
impairment provision s recorded to reduce the carrying value of the related investment

Taxation

Income tax payable on the profits of the LLP 1s solely the hability of the individual members of those LLPs and consequently
15 not dealt with in these financial statements

Allocation of profits and drawings

Profits are allocated in proportion to the class of partnership equity interests held and 1n accordance with the terms of the
WasteInvestments LLP Partnership Agreement Distributions out of cash are made at the Management Board's discretion
after due regard to the amounts determned by the Management Board to be reasonably necessary to meet the working capital
needs of the LLP

60




WASTEINVESTMENTS LLP
LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

P1 INTEREST RECEIVABLE AND SIMILAR INCOME

P2

52 weeks ended 53 weeks ended
1 April 2 Aprl
2011 2010
£7000 £000
Interest due from group undertakings
Interest recervable on £614,424,836 Fixed Rate Unsecured Loan Note 2018 99,296 68,744
Interest receivable on £80,000,000 Fixed Rate Unsecured Loan Note 2018 24 465 14,122
Interest recervable on £166,230,000 Fixed Rate Unsecured Loan Note 2018 22,219 -
145,980 82,866
FIXED ASSETS INVESTMENTS
As at
1 Apnl
2011
£'000
At2 April 2010 10,000
At April 2011 10,000
The LLP's direct investment in the balance sheet date 15 in the share capital of the following company
Name of company Activity Class of % of Country of
share shares Incorporation
held
WasteEquityco Intermediate holding company  Ordinary 100.00 Cayman lslands

The members consider that to give full particulars of all indirectly held subsidiary undertakings would lead to a
statement of excessive length The following information relates to those undertakings of the LLP at the period end
whose results and financtal position, i the opmion of the members, principally affect the figures of the LLP as holding

partnership of those undertakings

Name of company Activity Class of % of Country of
share shares lIncerporation
held

‘WasteShareholderco 1 Intermediate holding company  Ordinary 100.00 Cayman Islands
‘WasteShareholderco 2 Intermediate holding company  Ordinary 100.00 Cayman Islands
United

Biffa Group Limtted Intermediate holding company  Ordinary  100.00 Kingdom
United

Biffa Waste Services Limited Waste management services Ordinary 100.00 Kingdom
United

Biffa Waste Management Linmted ~ Waste management services Ordinary 100.00 Kingdom
United

UK Waste Management Limited Waste management services Ordinary 100.00 Kingdom
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P3 MEMBERS’ PROFIT SHARES

The basis on which profits are shared among members 1s set out in the accounting polictes note on page 60
The average monthly number of members during the period was 49

The profit attributable to the members with the largest entitlement to profit in the period 15 £49,169,422

P4 DEBTORS AMOUNTS FALLING DUE IN MORE THAN ONE YEAR

As at As at

1 April 2 Aprll

2011 2010

£000 £000

Amounts due from group undertakings 1,169,856 857.646

Amounts due from group undertakings are unsecured and are repayable in April 20183 The amounts due from group
undertakings incur interest at the following rates

Applicable

interest rate

£614,424,836 Fixed Rate Unsecured Loan Note 2018 11 25%
£80,000,000 Fixed Rate Unsecured Loan Note 2018 17 75%
£166,230,000 Fixed Rate Unsecured Loan Note 2018 20 00%
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PS5 TOTAL MEMBERS’ INTEREST

Equity Debt
Class A Other lotal Class B Class C Class D Total
Partnership reserves Partnership Pantnership Partnership
Equity Equity Equity Equity

£°000 £000 £000 £000 £7000 £000 £000

27 March 2009 10,363 - 10,363 | 681,086 93,694 - 774,780
Members’ remuneration - - - 68,744 14,122 - 82,866
charged as an expense

2 Aprit 2010 10,363 - 10,363 | 749,830 107,816 - 857,646
Introduced by members - - - - - 166,230 166,230
Members’ remuneration - - - 99,242 24,458 22,204 145,904
charged as an expense

I Apnil 2011 10,363 - 10,363 | 849,072 132,274 188,434 1,169,780

The Class B, Class C and Class D partnership interests are repayable following repayment of the partnership’s loans to
its subsidiary undertakings as described in note P4 at the amount of cash received n respect of those loans

The basis on which profits are allocated 1s described 1n the accounting policies on page 60 Loans and others debts due
to members represent profits not yet paid to members Such profits are payable at the discretion of the Management
Board No amounts due to members have been distributed as cash in the period and the amounts due to members are not
expected to be paid within one year

In the event of a winding-up, loans and other debts due to members rank equally with unsecured creditors Members'
capital and other reserves rank afier unsecured creditors

P6 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Certair members of the LLP are employed by Biffa Waste Services Limited, a subsidiary of the LLP, and provide
management services to the Wastelnvestments LLP Group as a whole Their remuneration i their capacity as
employees of Biffa Waste Services Limited 1s disclosed n the notes to the financial statements of that company and
the notes to the consolidated financial statements of the LLP

In addition, Montagu Private Equity and Global Infrastructure Partners, the ultimate controlling parties of the LLP
receive fees in respect of management services which they provide to the Wastelnvestments LLP Group as a whole
These fees are disclosed 1n the notes to the consolidated financial statements of the LLP

There were no other transactions with members of the LLP 1n the period, other than allocations of the profit ansing n the

period (see notes P1 and P35)

P7 ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTIES

The vlumate controlling parties of the LLP are considered to be Montagu Private Equity and Global Infrastructure
Partners
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